
 
 

NOTICE AND AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOVERNING COUNCIL OF 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY 

(Formerly SAMS) 

(See Special Procedures Below) 

November 17, 2023 

2:00 p.m. 

AAA Board Room and Internet/Call-in 

 

AAA MISSION 
 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy cultivates opportunities for 6th-12th grade students to excel in fields related 

to aviation and STEAM. Students will have unique options to explore and excel in multiple career areas of 

aviation which are woven throughout an innovative hybrid learning experience. 

 

I.           Call to Order 

A.  Roll Call 

B.  Adoption of the Agenda* 

C.  Review/Approval of Minutes from October  20, 2023 Regular Meeting* 

 

II.       Public Comment (comments will be limited to two minutes) – see attached Special Procedures for 

more information. 

 

III.         Ongoing Business Matters 

A. Aviation Program Update 

B. Facility Update 

C. Planning and Preparation for Charter Renewal 

 

IV.         Administrative Update 

A. Student Achievement Update 

B. New Logo 

 

V.        New Business Matters 
A. Revised School Safety Plan (discussion/action) * 

B. Training Discussion 

C. Conflict Resolution Discussion 

 

VI. Governing Council Development 

A. Discussion with Kelly Callahan 

B. Strategic Planning Discussion 

1. Aerospace Curriculum Implementation to Align with New Mission Statement 

2. Planning and Preparation for Charter Renewal 

3. Focused Priorities Discussion 

 



 
 

 

 

 

VII. Finance Report 

A. Business Office Operations Update 
B. Voucher Approvals (discussion/action) *  

C. Bank Reconciliation (discussion/action) * 

 

VIII.      Announcements  

A. Date for next Regular SAMS Academy Governing Council Meeting 

 
 

IX.       Adjournment* 

 
 

Note: * Indicates Action Item 
 

If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language interpreter, or any other 

form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the hearing or meeting, please contact Amanda Catanzaro at 

acatanzaro@samsacademy.com least one week prior to the meeting or as soon as possible. Public documents, including the 

agenda and minutes, can be provided in various accessible formats. Please contact Ms. Catanzaro at the email address above if a 

summary or other type of accessible format is needed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

Special Procedures for November 17, 2023 AAA Governing Council Regular Meeting 

The AAA Governing Council Regular Meeting on November 17, 2023 at 2:00 pm will be held at Albuquerque 

Aviation Academy and will provide for those not wishing to attend in person access to view and/or 

participate via Zoom.  This will be available to the public, Governing Council members and AAA staff. 

The procedures for accessing the meeting are as follows: 

From a computer, tablet or smartphone, enter the following URL:  
https://us04web.zoom.us/j/5383341131?pwd=UWpFVWNQejFoRDRYMCt3OXlEdkxhUT09 
 
OR  
 
Call one of the following numbers:  
1-669-900-6833 
1-301-715-8592 
1-253-215-8782 
 
(Because of the increase of Zoom for meeting use, the phone numbers may appear to be busy at first. Keep 
trying until you get through.)  
 
Meeting ID: 538 334 1131 
Access Code: 4100 
 
You will also be asked to enter your (optional) participant ID. Just follow the spoken directions (press #) to 
skip this step, as it is not needed for this meeting. 
 
Public comment will be allowed during the meeting either via Zoom or in person. To speak during public 
comment, please email your request to speak with your name to acatanzaro@samsacademy.com up to 
twenty-four hours prior to the meeting.  Requests to speak made after twenty-four hours prior to the 
meeting will not be honored.  Speakers will be un-muted to address the Governing Council.  Public 
comments will be limited to two minutes. The public may email comments to Amanda Catanzaro 
acatanzaro@samsacademy.com.  Email comments will be kept with the records of the meeting. 
 
Audio and video recording of the open meeting will be available upon request. 
  
Should anyone wishing to join the meeting via the internet have issues accessing the meeting you may 
contact Amanda Catanzaro at 505-715-3420. 
 

https://us04web.zoom.us/j/5383341131?pwd=UWpFVWNQejFoRDRYMCt3OXlEdkxhUT09
mailto:acatanzaro@samsacademy.com
mailto:acatanzaro@samsacademy.com


 
These procedures are subject to revision given changing circumstances.  Please check the website for any 

updates to these procedures.



                                                                                          1                                 Prepared by:  Amanda Catanzaro 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GOVERNING COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting of the SAMS Academy Governing Council on Friday, October 20, 2023 

via Zoom.us & In person at 6441 Ventana Road NW 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Roland Dewing, Farrah Nickerson, Mike Deveraux, Alex Carothers, and Larry Kennedy 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 

Mike Romo, Laura Kohr, and Jody Meyer 

 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE 

Bridget Barrett, Amanda Catanzaro, Sean Fry, Kelly Callahan and Lauren Chavez 

 

PUBLIC 

Ed Smith (Emeritus Member) 

 

These minutes were approved on ______________ 

By a vote of  ___ yes ___no  ___ absent  __abstained 

________________________________ President 

________________________________ Secretary 

  



                                                                                          2                                 Prepared by:  Amanda Catanzaro 

I. Call to Order 

Larry Kennedy called to order the Regular Meeting of the Governing Council for the 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy for October 20, 2023 at 2:00 PM on Zoom.us and in 

person. 

 

A. Roll Call 

Larry Kennedy asked Amanda Catanzaro to call roll. Amanda Catanzaro called 

Roland Dewing, Farrah Nickerson, Mike Deveraux, Alex Carothers, and Larry 

Kennedy.  

 

B. Adoption of the Agenda* 

Larry Kennedy asked for a motion to approve the agenda. Farrah Nickerson made 

a motion to approve the agenda. Alex Carothers seconded the motion. Larry 

Kennedy called for a roll call vote to approve the agenda. Amanda Catanzaro 

called Roland Dewing, Farrah Nickerson, Mike Deveraux, Alex Carothers, and Larry 

Kennedy; all voted yes. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

C. Review/Approval of Minutes from September 22, 2023 Special Meeting* 

Larry Kennedy asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the September 

22, 2023 Special Meeting. Farrah Nickerson made a motion to approve the 

minutes. Roland Dewing seconded the motion. Larry Kennedy called for a roll call 

vote. Amanda Catanzaro called Roland Dewing, Farrah Nickerson, Mike Deveraux, 

Alex Carothers, and Larry Kennedy; all voted yes. The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

II. Public Comment  

Larry Kennedy asked Bridget Barrett and Amanda Catanzaro if there was any 

public comment. There were no public comments.  

 

III. Ongoing Business Matters 

A. Aviation Program Update 

Dr. Lauren Chavez presented they have flown approximately 80 hours since the last 

meeting. Four students have completed all their night and solo flight requirements 

and all four have scheduled check rides in December. Another student just passed the 

FAA Knowledge Exam and has joined the flight team. “Trixie” has completed her Hot-

Air Balloon check ride and is officially a Fixed Wing Pilot, Hot Air Balloon Pilot and 

Drone Pilot.  

The plane is currently at the mechanics, as of this morning, for the 100 hour check. 

This is happening more frequently with the two CFI’s and all the additional flying that 

is happening.  



                                                                                          3                                 Prepared by:  Amanda Catanzaro 

KOB aired a story about our school that aired over Balloon Fiesta week. The first 

internship at Eclipse Aviation has taken place and was a success.  

Dr. Chavez reviewed the monthly expenses and hangar rental discussion took place. 

Hangar rentals may go up again but we have not heard anything from BODE at this 

time.  

 

B. Facility Update 

Amanda Catanzaro presented the facilities update for October 2023, reviewing 

the completed projects since last month’s meeting and projects that still need 

attention. Gym flooring is completed and outlet in Mr. Begit’s room has been 

repaired by an electrician. Ongoing projects include completion of the score 

board, handyman to fix holes in walls, school signage after we receive a final 

official logo, toilet seat that is loose in middle school lounge, sink in middle school 

bathroom that needs to be fixed, courtyard door that is not locking and adding 

locks to the science room storage doors.  

 

C. Planning and Preparation for Charter Renewal 

The charter renewal site visit with CSD is Monday, October 23. The governing 

council visit is at 1:00, in person or remote options available. Alex Carothers and 

Larry Kennedy will be representing the board.  

 

IV. Administrative Update 

A. Student Achievement Update 

Bridget Barrett presented Academics by Enrollment information to show where 

students are currently standing.  

Now that gym flooring is completed, the gym is in high demand. Middle School 

Basketball has just started and varsity will begin in November as well as 

cheerleading that has begun.  

Current enrollment is 306, above projected numbers. Equity Council is meeting 

every 4th Monday at 2:00. Charter Renewal site visit is October 23rd.  

Mission Minute shared about the Balloons and Burritos event that happened the 

Thursday before Balloon Fiesta. It was a great success! Thank you to Kierstynn 

Wehner and her family. 

 

Alex Carothers asked about enrollment and if we have been doing exit surveys on 

the students that have left the school year so far.  

 

V. New Business Matters 

A. Aircraft Lease * 

Discussion around the lease that was approved last month. The Pipistrel is 

registered as a glider, therefor, Doc must have her glider CFI to use that aircraft 



                                                                                          4                                 Prepared by:  Amanda Catanzaro 

for teaching purposes. Discussion around when to execute the lease. Executing 

the lease should wait until after Dr. Chavez has her glider certificate.  

The board would like administration to bring this back to the governing council 

when the school is ready to execute the contract.  

 

VI. Governing Council Development 

A. Discussion with Kelly Callahan 

Kelly Callahan discussed how this training model is growing throughout other 

charter schools. Discussion around what this training will look like in the future 

and possibilities.  

B. Strategic Planning Discussion 

Next month we should discuss what the governing councils next focused priority 

should be following renewal. What are the priorities for the next year and moving 

forward? Where do we go from here? 

Dr. Chavez shared some logo ideas with the governing council.  

 

VII. Finance Report 

A. Business Office Operations Update 

Larry Kennedy presented that the finance committee met Thursday, October 19 

since Sean was going to be out of town.  

 

B. Voucher Approvals * 

Larry Kennedy presented the out of normal transactions that happened in the 

month of September. Larry Kennedy asked for a motion to approve the 

September 2023 Vouchers. Alex Carothers made a motion to approve. Farrah 

Nickerson seconded the motion. Larry Kennedy called for a roll call vote. Amanda 

Catanzaro called Roland Dewing, Farrah Nickerson, Mike Deveraux, Alex 

Carothers, and Larry Kennedy; all voted yes. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

C. Bank Reconciliation * 

Larry Kennedy asked for a motion to approve the September 2023 Bank 

Reconciliation. Farrah Nickerson made a motion to approve. Alex Carothers 

seconded the motion. Larry Kennedy called for a roll call vote. Amanda Catanzaro 

Roland Dewing, Farrah Nickerson, Mike Deveraux, Alex Carothers, and Larry 

Kennedy; all voted yes. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

D. Permanent Cash Transfer * 

Larry Kennedy presented that the finance committee discussed in detail the 

information regarding the Permanent Cash Transfer and discussion regarding the 

reason for this as detailed on the Permanent Cash Transfer Form.  



                                                                                          5                                 Prepared by:  Amanda Catanzaro 

Larry Kennedy asked for a motion to approve the Permanent Cash Transfer. 

Farrah Nickerson made a motion to approve. Alex Carothers seconded the 

motion. Larry Kennedy called for a roll call vote. Amanda Catanzaro called Roland 

Dewing, Farrah Nickerson, Mike Deveraux, Alex Carothers, and Larry Kennedy; all 

voted yes. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

VIII. Announcements 

A. Next regular Governing Council meeting is scheduled for November 17, 2023.  

 

IX. Adjournment* 

Larry Kennedy called for a motion to adjourn. Farrah Nickerson made a motion to 

adjourn. Roland Dewing seconded the motion. Larry Kennedy called for a roll call 

vote to adjourn. Amanda Catanzaro called Roland Dewing, Farrah Nickerson, Mike 

Deveraux, Alex Carothers, and Larry Kennedy; all voted yes. The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

The Regular Meeting of the Governing Council for the Albuquerque Aviation Academy 

adjourned on October 20, 2023 at 3:29 PM.       



 

Monthly Report - Nov 17, 2023 
All figures and outcomes are based on the date of this report - Nov 10, 2023. 

FLIGHT TRAINING:  
• Flights - We flew 54.1 hrs since the last board report. We’ve had two more student solo, one student completed all 

of his cross-country solo hours, and 4 students are scheduled for their Private Pilot checkrides in December.  
o Note: We’ve had three landings recently that have required some repair (1. Strut repair; 2. Tire replacement; 

3. Tail strike repair.) Due to this, we are restructuring student training so that, for now, only the Chief CFI 
will do pre-solo student landing training and high performance landings (only regular post-solo landings 
will be done with non-Chief CFI.) Go-pro (or similar) cameras will also be installed and used for the Chief 
CFI to evaluate student training, and for learning/standardization from Chief CFI.) 

o Note: Due to the above (repairs + restructuring) we feel that the two aircraft in our fleet should be 
specifically built for a primary flight training environment. Therefore, rather than moving down the Pipistrel 
path, we are refocusing to secure another C172. I will find another reasonable way to add glider 
opportunities for students (CAP, internship, etc.)  

• Aircraft Status - Flying well. Continued rare avionic gremlins. 
• Drone - Going well. The DPGS scholarship program is now limiting the number of scholarships awarded, so we’ll 

have to see how that could effect our students in the future. 

CLASSES: 
• All going well. No issues. 

ADDITIONAL: 
• EAA /Young Eagles - No more events until 2024. 
• Internships - Going well - no issues. 
• CAP - Seems to be going well. 

EXPENSES: 
• Fuel: Please see the finance report (World Fuel). I estimated $3030, based on hours flown and average fuel cost. 
• Maintenance: $3368 (100 hr + various squawks) Upcoming: $3270 (tail strike repair) + 810 (tires)  
• Hangar Rental: $357 per month 
• Insurance: Annual Premium - $8,895 



November 2023 Facilities 
 

11.15.2023 

 

Completed Since Previous Meeting    

• Score Board in Gym has been installed and has electricity. Have reached out to Norcon to find 
out what other pieces are needed to get this completely up and running. Jared said the 
electrician would complete this, but that is not accurate. Electrician came out 10.10.2023 to 
see scope of work and will send a quote this week. Completed; Up and Running! 

• Sink in middle school family bathroom is broken. Water turned off and Jared texted 9.29.2023 
and followed up 10.16.2023. He texted he would “get someone out there to look at this.” Fixed 

• High School Classroom #2 Courtyard door handle is not locking. Ember from ANM is sending 
out someone this week to look at it. Fixed 

• Locks on Science room storage doors- 10.11.2023 email Jared – he is sending out someone to 
swap out the handles. Installed 
 

 

Projects That Still Need Attention (status) 

• Seeking Handyman Services to complete minor repairs around campus (up to 4 holes in walls 
now). Received quote 10.16.2023. Issuing purchase order and setting date for work.  

• School Signage with new name (waiting on new official logo to proceed) 
• Toilet seat in middle school lounge staff restroom is loose 

 

 

 

Upcoming Major Projects 

• Phase II of Cameras to include cameras in classrooms, one additional by bus lane, additional 
cameras in front hallways, and cameras on buses. Also include Vape Sensors. Received 
legislative funding for this project and finally on last step of the approval process with the 
state.  

• Seeking quotes for track on west side on campus. Legislative funding will be used for this 
project.  
  
 



WHAT'S HAPPENING? 

ENROLLMENT

 

Middle School Basketball doing great! High School
Basketball tryouts last night, practice starts after the
break.
Turkey Bingo November 30! We would love to see you
there!

  
304 Students Enrolled
25 on waitlist (9th and 12th, which are full)

6th  44 students         7th 41 students
8th  43 students      
9th  49 students         10th 44 students    
11th  43 students         12th 40 students
*40 day count 306, above projected number.

EQUITY COUNCIL

CHARTER RENEWAL

MISSION MINUTE

     ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE 
             2023

Five Members and growing!
Monthly Meetings each 4th
Monday at 2pm

Renewal scheduled for December 14th
Prep with Kelly Callahan slated for
December 6th, Larry and Roland invited

We are building some great traditions in
our new building. Halloween Trick or
Treating, NHS, Letterman Jackets
Assemblies and Turkey Bingo! 

ACADEMICS BY ENROLLMENT
1032 courses behind but passing
132 courses off track
283 courses on track
24 on pace but failing
99 courses completed (55 A’s, 36 B’s, 5 C’s, 3 D’s)



New Logo! 



 

 

 
School Safety Plan 

 
Southwest Aeronautics, Mathematics, 

and Science Academy (changing name to 
Albuquerque Aviation Academy) 

 

 
 

Approved for the 2023-24 School Year



 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  2 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

Table of Contents 
Section I Introduction         6 

  Introduction         6 

 1.2 Emergency Phone Numbers       7 

  School-Level Safety Committee Roster (Emergency Phone List)  9 

 1.3 Capacity Assessment        10 

  Annual Plan Revision Page       12 

Maps            13 

 Aerial View – Campus Map with Utility Shutoff Locations    13 

 Albuquerque Aviation Academy School Floor Plan with Utility Shutoff Location 14 

Section II Prevention         15 

 2.1 Health & Behavioral Health Services      15 

  School Based or Community Health Partner Information   16 

 2.2 Infectious and Communicable Disease      16 

 2.3 Behavioral and Mental Health      22 

  Referral Network        24 

 2.4 Social Emotional Learning/School Climate Supports    25 

 2.5 Bullying         25 

 2.6 Internet Use – Health & Safety Impacts     25 

Section III Protection & Mitigation       29 

 3.1 Behavioral Threat Assessment Matrix     29 

 3.2 Suicide Awareness and Prevention      30 

  Crisis Intervention Team Roster      33 

  Referral Network        33 

Section IV Response         36 

 4.1 Understanding Risks, Threats, and Hazards     36 

  Behavioral Threat Assessment Team      43 

 4.2 Drills and Exercise Planning       43 



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  3 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 4.3 Review, Revise, Secure, and Share the Plan     45 

 4.4 Access Control         45 

 4.5 Facility Safety         46 

 4.6 Bicycle Safety         48 

 4.7 School Security Staff        49 

 4.8 Incident Command System       49 

 4.9 School Incident Command System and Roles     51 

  School Incident Command Assignment Roster    54 

 4.10 Emergency Operations Desktop Manual     57 

  Evacuation Plan         58 

  Shelter-in-Place        59 

  Lockdown Procedures        60 

  Active Shooter         61 

  Medical Emergency        62 

  Fire Special Considerations       63 

Hazardous Material Release       64 

Natural Hazards        65 

Flood, Snowfall, High Winds and Severe Weather    66 

Bomb Threat Special Considerations      67 

Explosion Special Considerations      68 

Fallen Aircraft (Including Hot Air Balloons)     69 

Transportation Emergencies        70 

Loss of Power or Water       71 

Civil Disturbance        71 

Cyber Breach         71 

 4.11 Evacuation – Albuquerque Aviation Academy Fire Evacuation Map  72 

  Evacuation Map        73 

  Evacuation          74 



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  4 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 4.12 Shelter-in-Place        75 

 4.13 Lockdown         76 

 4.14 Active Shooter         77 

 4.15 Closing of School/Early Dismissal       80 

 4.16 Act of Violence        81 

 4.17 Animal on Campus        82 

 4.18 Bomb Threat         82 

  Bomb Threat Call Procedures       85 

 4.19 Civil Disturbance        86 

 4.20 Cyber Security Breach        86 

 4.21 Explosion         86 

 4.22 Fallen Aircraft         87 

 4.23 Fire          87 

 4.24 Hazmat         88 

 4.25 Loss of Power or Water       89 

 4.26 Medical Emergency         89 

  Emergency Phone Numbers       90 

 4.27 Missing Child         91 

 4.28 Natural Hazards/Severe Weather      91 

 4.29 Special Events         93 

 4.30 Transportation Emergency       93 

 4.31 Notification and Messaging       94 

 4.32 Media Relations        96 

Section V Recovery         97 

  Recovery Team Roster       97 

 5.1 Relocation and Reunification        98 

  Reunification Team        100 

  Student Reunification Card       103 



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  5 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 5.2 Continuity of Operations Planning      104 

 5.3 Psychological and Emotional Recovery     107 

  Crisis Intervention Team Roster      107 

Appendices  

 Appendix A  Armed and Unarmed School Security Staff or Police Requirements 

 Appendix A-1  Armed and Unarmed Security Reporting – Required 

 Appendix B  Response Teams Development and Trainings Required 

 Appendix B-1   Safe School Plan Teams Development & Training Schedule 

 Appendix C  Emergency Drills with Considerations for AFN/LEP 

    2023-2024 Emergency Drills 

Appendix D New Mexico Public School Insurance Authority (NMPSIA) Security 
Assessment and Safety Audit  

Appendix D-1 Self-Administered Security Assessment 

Appendix E ADA and LEP Assurance to NM 

Appendix F Bullying and Cyberbullying Policy and Prevention Training  

Appendix G Discipline Policy 

Appendix H Identification and Badging 

Appendix I Integrated Pest Management  

Appendix J Review, Revise, Secure and Share Plan 

Appendix K Acknowledgement of New Mexico’s Age of Consent for Mental 
Health Services  

  

 

  



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  6 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

Section I 

Introduction 

 

Southwest Aeronautics, Mathematics, and Science Academy (AKA Albuquerque Aviation Academy) 
6441 Ventana Road NW 
Albuquerque, NM 87114 
(505) 608-6441 
http://www.samsacademy.com 
 
Albuquerque Aviation Academy is a State Chartered-Charter School located within the physical boundary 
of the Albuquerque Public School District at 6441 Ventana Road NW, Albuquerque, New Mexico 87114.  
The school currently has approximately 25 faculty and staff members and approximately 306 students in 
grades 6 through 12.  Albuquerque Aviation Academy is approximately 11 years old and resides in a new 
facility constructed in 2022 and opened in January 2023.   

The campus has welded steel perimeter fencing on three sides and a CMU block wall on the remaining 
side.  It is bordered by one major road, Irving Boulevard, one minor street, Ventana Road, and residential 

housing on one side.  The area to the west of the campus bordered by the CMU wall can be accessed by 
pedestrian intruders by jumping residential walls of over 5 feet tall.  The school building contains an 
enclosed entry that remains locked during school hours, is always manned and accessible by key card 
or through a buzz in lock release.  Signage is used to help direct visitors to the front entrance where they 
must check in and out of the campus.  The campus is monitored by cameras 24 hours a day and constantly 



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  7 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

patrolled by the school administration.  Administrators are in constant contact with staff throughout the 
day. 

Irving Boulevard is a moderately heavy travelled road and is the primarily frontage for the school.  It 
accommodates cars, trucks, and heavy truck traffic.  There is one access gate to the campus on Irving Blvd. 
and one on Ventana Road.  The Irving Blvd entrance is primarily used by students and staff and is secured 
once school begins.  The Ventana Road entrance is used throughout the day for student pickup and drop 
off at the beginning and end of school day and for all other traffic during school hours.  Both entrances 
have remotely operated gate closure mechanisms.  The school building is located off of the roadway but 
the parking area could be affected by a vehicle leaving the roadway and blocking access to the school 
itself.   

 

1.2 Emergency Phone Numbers 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy will update this information annually or as needed when there are 
changes in personnel or phone numbers. 

Emergency Phone Number(s):  911 

Name of Closest Emergency Medical Service: Rust Medical Center 

  2400 Unser Blvd SE 

  Rio Rancho, NM 87124 

  (505)253-7878 

Average Emergency Response Time of First Responders:     11 min 58 seconds 

Cross Streets for Your Building/Facility: Irving Blvd/Ventana Road 

 

Be prepared to provide the following information when you dial 911 and stay on the line until the call is 
terminated by the answering party. It is not unusual to be asked the same question multiple times to 
ensure accuracy. 

 Your name and phone number 

 School/facility name, phone number and address 

 Nature of emergency 

 Address ad easy directions, including best entrance to use.  

 Exact location of injured person (e.g., behind the gym parking lot) 

 Type of injury/condition suspected (e.g., head or neck injury, shock, etc.) 

 Help already given to victim (e.g. epinephrine, CPR, AED, etc.) 

 Ways to find the entrance easily (someone standing out front, a flagpole, etc.) 

 

Other Important Phone Numbers: 



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  8 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 Poison Control: 1 (800) 222-1222 

 Child Abuse Hotline: 1 (855) 333-7233  



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  9 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

School-Level Safety Committee Roster (Emergency Phone List) 
The school-level safety roster is made-up of administrators, faculty, and first responders. Albuquerque 

Aviation Academy will update this information annually or as needed when there are changes in 

personnel or phone numbers.  

 

NAME  TITLE/SCHOOL/DEPARTMENT  PHONE AND EMAIL  

Emergency Phone Number(s)  911 

Amanda Catanzaro Director of Operations – 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy 
505-715-3420 

acatanzaro@samsacademy.com 

Bridget Barrett Head Administrator – 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy 
505-440-8511 

bbarrett@samsacademy.com 

Gregory Leonard Special Ed Teacher – 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy 
505-298-2746 

gleonard@samsacademy.com 

Paula Gonzales Business Office Assistant 505-459-5688 

pgonzales@samsacademy.com 

Audra Hays Social Worker 505-280-0193 

ahays@samsacademy.com 

Carla Gonzales Registrar/Office Manager 505-659-6290 

cgonzales@samsacademy.com 

Pete Gelabert NW Crime Prevention Specialist 

Albuquerque Police Department 

505-768-4850 

pgelabert@cabq.gov 

Tim Pope Fire Inspector 

Albuquerque Fire and Rescue 

505-764-6300 

tpope@cabq.com 

Richard Clark Director 

Bernalillo County Emergency 

Management 

505-468-1301 

rclark@bernco.gov 

 

  

mailto:acatanzaro@samsacademy.com
mailto:bbarrett@samsacademy.com
mailto:gleonard@samsacademy.com
mailto:pgonzales@samsacademy.com
mailto:ahays@samsacademy.com
mailto:cgonzales@samsacademy.com
mailto:pgelabert@cabq.gov
mailto:rclark@bernco.gov


 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  10 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

1.3 Capacity Assessment 

At the beginning of each school year an assessment is given to examine the capabilities of staff and to list 

material resources of community partners that could be available to the school.  The Staff Capacity 

assessment includes those that have first aid skills, foreign language, counseling experience, etc.  Copies 

of the Staff Capacity Assessment are secured in the office for security purposes.  (Below is example, the 

form used which was also available for completion using Google Forms) 



 
 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  11 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

Staff Skills Inventory Summary 

21 Staff Members surveyed. 

Skill # Staff 

First Aid  17 

CPR 18 

AED 18 

Multilingual 
English/ Spanish 

2 

Experience with Disabilities 10 

Ham Radio/CB Experience 2 

Knowledge of Community Resources 6 

Emergency Operations Management 2 

Emergency Medical 7 

Search and Rescue 1 

Fire Fighting 2 

Media Relations 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  12 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

Annual Plan Revision Page 
Date of Annual Review: July 

Revision Type Added/Changed Info Deleted/Removed 
Info 

Revised 
By 

Revision 
Date 

Revisions for new manual Many  ADC 11/2023 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  13 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

Maps 
 

Maps of Albuquerque Aviation Academy  

Aerial View – Campus Map with Utility Shutoff Locations 

 

  



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  14 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy School Floor Plan with Utility Shutoff Location 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  15 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

Section II Prevention 
2.1 Health & Behavioral Health Services 
 
Health services are those that are provided for students to appraise, protect, and promote health.  These 
services are designed to ensure access or referral to primary health care and/or behavioral health services; 
to foster appropriate use of primary health care/behavioral health services; to prevent and control 
communicable diseases and other health problems; to provide emergency care for illness or injury; to 
promote and provide optimum sanitary conditions for a safe school facility and school environment; and 
to provide educational and counseling opportunities for promoting and maintaining individual, family, and 
community health. 

Health Services are part of the required Albuquerque Aviation Academy Wellness Policy and provides a 
coordinated school health program that is based on collaboration between school staff and community 
members representing various stakeholders.  Important team members include Governance Council 
Members, school administration, health and ancillary service providers, food services staff and 
community emergency and health providers.  

During times of crisis, the school relies heavily on the assistance of local community responders and 
agencies.  Albuquerque Aviation Academy has developed strong working relationships with local 
emergency management coordinators, health officials and other community stakeholders to create an all-
hazards plan to ensure a comprehensive and effective response to decrease fear, anxiety, and confusion 
and to improve the school’s response during a crisis. 

The New Mexico Depart of Health (DOH) New Mexico School Health Manual is an excellent resource on 
New Mexico health requirements.  The Albuquerque Aviation Academy has adopted the manual and, to 
the extent possible, has aligned its health service protocols to those recommended in the manual.  The 
school office has electronic access to the NM School Health Manual. 

Unfortunately, Albuquerque Aviation Academy does not have the resources to have a full-time nurse.  
Albuquerque Aviation Academy contracts with a registered nurse to review vaccination records, health 
records, and to provide guidance to the office manager regarding medications and medical issues.  
Students are referred to the office manager and those students with more extensive needs are referred 
to other community health providers; including First Choice Community Healthcare – Alameda Medical 
Center, UNM Family Health, Westside Clinic, or other private health providers located in Albuquerque.   

The school office maintains the Emergency Medical Authorizations forms for all the students at 
Albuquerque Aviation Academy.  This form is updated by the parent/guardian at least once each school 
year or as often as the emergency contact information changes.  This form also provides school medical 
personnel essential health history information relating to the child which can be of vital importance in an 
emergency. 

The school office is responsible for ensuring that all students, currently enrolled or to be enrolled at the 
school, have current immunizations as required by law, or have the proper waiver from the NMDOH.  
Verification is cross-referenced with NMDOH through the NMSIIS system. 

The school office is responsible for the proper secure storage of any prescription or non-prescription 
medications that are to be administered through the office.  The Albuquerque Aviation Academy office 
manager with the guidance of the contracted nurse dispenses medication, as needed.  

https://www.nmhealth.org/publication/view/guide/4317/


 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  16 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

The school office provides parents/guardians with the following information of community health centers 
and health resources available to families annually at registration and as needed throughout the school 
year. 

 

School Based or Community Health Partner Information 
 
Audra Hays – Albuquerque Aviation Academy Social Worker 
6441 Ventana Rd NW 
Albuquerque, NM 87114 
505-608-6441 
 
First Choice Community Healthcare – Alameda Medical Center 
7704 2nd Street NW 
Albuquerque, NM 87107 
505-890-1458 
 
UNM Family Health, Westside Clinic 
4808 McMahon Blvd NW 
Albuquerque, NM 87114 
505-272-2900 
 
 

2.2 Infectious and Communicable Disease 
 
Infectious and communicable diseases frequently occur in the school setting. Factors that affect the risk 
of disease in schools include the age of students, immunity of the group, number of students, the degree 
of close contact between children and providers, and the hygienic habits of students and staff. 
 
Albuquerque Aviation Academy utilizes the following primary strategies for preventing contagious 
illnesses: 

● Students are to stay at home when experiencing symptoms. 
● Cover nose and mouth when coughing or sneezing. 
● Wash hands with soap and water or use alcohol-based hand sanitizers frequently. 
● Try to maintain physical separation of at least three feet from others, if possible. 
● Hand sanitizer stations are placed in every classroom with signage posted directing usage upon 

entry and exit of each room. 
● An isolation room is available. 

 



 
 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  17 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

Infectious and Communicable Diseases Response Plan for Albuquerque Aviation Academy. 
 
Albuquerque Aviation Academy provides annual instruction to students in proper hygiene related to the 
spread of disease and germs to all students.  Albuquerque Aviation Academy is prepared if a student is 
referred to the office and is exhibiting symptoms of a possible infectious or communicable disease. The 
following steps will be followed: 

● Isolation of the student from other students and staff. 
o A student may be required to put on a face mask. 
o No other students or non-nursing staff will be allowed to have contact with the student. 

● The Nurse or health assistant assigned to the Albuquerque Aviation Academy will be notified as 
well as the school Head Administrator and the Council President.  In the event the Nurse or health 
assistant is not available the school Head Administrator will be notified. 

● Parents will be notified and the student will be referred to the local health office, personal 
physician, or hospital for medical evaluation.   
 

 

Level 1 - Daily operations at Albuquerque Aviation Academy include the following preventative 

measures:   

Those Responsible  Actions To Be Taken 

School Staff  Conducts follow-up with routine vomiting and diarrhea illness 
reports to ensure appropriate persons are notified to include the 
Head Administrator and custodial staff so that clean-up procedures 
are followed.  

 Notifies parent/guardian and sends home any student with nausea, 
vomiting, and/or diarrhea. 

 Conducts hand washing training for all students. 

The Custodial Staff  Switch to an EPA Certified Norovirus Disinfectant or Chlorine bleach 
upon notification of an issue. 

 Routine cleaning of all kitchen and bathroom surfaces. 

 Employ diarrhea and vomiting clean-up protocol for all reported 
instances. 

 If carpeting or upholstery was contaminated, use absorbent to 
isolate the bodily fluid and then employ the cleanup protocol to 
sanitize the area. 

School Administration  Assure Custodial Staff follows clean-up protocol. 

 Assure that any food handlers that may exhibit any signs of illness 
are sent home and do not return for 48 to 78 hours after symptoms 
are gone. 

 
 



 
 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  18 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

 

Level 2 - In the event of a suspected GI Cluster/Concern, a group of students exhibiting signs of nausea, 
vomiting, and/or diarrhea, the following protocol will be followed: 

 

Those Responsible  Actions To Be Taken 

School Staff  Notify the Social Worker and school administration. 

 Send home any student or staff with nausea, vomiting, and/or 
diarrhea. 

 

The Nurse, if available, 
if not, the Head 
Administrator 

 Complete daily documentation and ensure that it is properly 
forwarded to both the Environmental Health Department and the 
NM Dept. of Health.  

 Contact the Head Administrator or the Governing Council President 
and inform them of the issue. 

 

The Custodial Staff  Switch to an EPA Certified Norovirus Disinfectant or Chlorine bleach 
upon notification of an issue. 

 Routine cleaning of all kitchen and bathroom surfaces. 

 Employ diarrhea and vomiting clean-up protocol for all reported 
instances. 

 If carpeting or upholstery was contaminated, use absorbent to 
isolate the bodily fluid and then employ the cleanup protocol to 
sanitize the area. 

 Increase frequency of cleaning of all contact areas to include door 
handles, light switches, and such.  

 

School Administration  Assure Custodial Staff follows clean-up protocol. 

 Assure that any food handlers that may exhibit any signs of illness 
are sent home and do not return for 48 to 78 hours after symptoms 
are gone.  

 Notify all school staff to encourage diligence in cleaning and taking 
precautionary measures. 

 Inform the Governance Council of the issue and let them know that 
the New Mexico Health Department and the Public Education 
Department have been notified and that this is not considered an 
outbreak.  

 

 

 



 
 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  19 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

Level 3: In the case of an outbreak the following protocol will be followed:   

Those Responsible  Actions To Be Taken 

School Staff  Notify the Nurse and school administration. 

 Send home any student or staff with nausea, vomiting, and/or 
diarrhea. 

Nurse/Head 
Administrator 

 Complete daily documentation and ensure that it is properly 
forwarded to both the Environmental Health Department and the 
NM Dept. of Health.  

 Contact the Council President and let them know of the issue. 

The Custodial Staff  Switch to an EPA Certified Norovirus Disinfectant or Chlorine bleach 
upon notification of an issue. 

 Routine cleaning of all kitchen and bathroom surfaces. 

 Employ diarrhea and vomiting clean-up protocol for all reported 
instances. 

 If carpeting or upholstery was contaminated, use absorbent to 
isolate the bodily fluid and then employ the cleanup protocol to 
sanitize the area. 

 Increase frequency of cleaning of all contact areas to include door 
handles, light switches, etc.  

 Clean and sanitize the kitchen area and restrict access.  

School Administration  Notify the school community of the outbreak and cancel all non-
essential after-school events.  

 Sent letter home to parents/guardians of all students that outlines 
precautionary measures that families can take as well as providing a 
list of resources for more information concerning such illnesses.  

 Provide additional information to staff either via a staff meeting or 
email.  

 Assure Custodial Staff follows the clean-up protocol. 

 Assure that any food handlers that may exhibit any signs of illness 
are sent home and do not return for 48 to 78 hours after symptoms 
are gone.  

 Notification to all school staff to encourage diligence in cleaning and 
taking precautionary measures. 

 Inform the Governance Council of the issue and let them know that 
the State Health Department and the Public Education Department 
have been notified and that this is now considered an outbreak.  



 
 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  20 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

Maintaining cleanliness to prevent the transmission of communicable diseases in the classroom. 

Guidelines: 
● Adequate handwashing facilities should be available to students and staff.  This includes a sink, 

hot and cold running water, liquid soap, and disposable paper towels.  Separate storage areas for 
clean clothing and linens apart from soiled clothing and linens should be provided. 

● All soiled disposable items should be held in waste receptacles lined with plastic bags which 
should be discarded by staff daily.  These plastic bags should never be reused.  Contaminated 
items, including disposable diapers, discarded in an uncovered waste receptacle should be placed 
in a separate small plastic bag before being discarded. 

● Approved bactericidal solutions should be used to clean toys, tables, chairs, and other 
environmental surfaces.  

Pandemic Flu/Other Viruses 

A pandemic is a global disease outbreak.  A pandemic flu/virus outbreak occurs when a new influenza 
virus, or other viruses emerge for which people have little or no immunity, and for which there is no 
vaccine.  The disease spreads easily from person to person, causing serious illness, and can sweep across 
the country and around the world in a very short time.  It is difficult to predict when the next pandemic 
will occur or how severe it will be. 

Pandemic Symptoms: 

● If people are ill, they should stay at home and limit contact with others, except to seek medical 
care.  Healthy residents living in these areas should take the everyday preventive actions listed 
below. 

● People who live in these areas who develop an illness with fever and respiratory symptoms, such 
as a cough and runny nose, and possibly other symptoms, such as body aches, nausea, vomiting 
or diarrhea, should contact their health care provider.  Their health care provider will determine 
whether testing is needed. 

 
A comprehensive Pandemic Planning Checklist for schools includes components that: 

● Address pandemic preparedness as part of the school’s safe school plan, with the involvement of 
all relevant stakeholders in the school (e.g., lead emergency response agency, administrators, 
local public health representatives, school health and mental health professionals, teachers, food 
services directors, and parent representatives). 

● Advise staff, students, and families where to find up-to-date and reliable pandemic information 
from federal, state, and local public health sources. 

● Follow guidelines from the school for students leaving and returning to school in the event of 
pandemic situation 

Assumptions:  

● Everyone will be affected to some extent by the pandemic. 
● There will be a shortage of hospital and medical facility space, medical supplies, medical 

equipment, and healthcare staff. 
● Assistance from health care facilities outside the area will not be available. 
● Information, communication, direction will come from Federal and State governmental agencies. 
● A single pandemic will likely consist of multiple waves or periods of reemergence of the virus into 

the community.  



 
 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  21 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

● The first wave of multiple pandemic waves may last from 1-3 months, while the entire pandemic 
may last 2-3 years. 

● Liability protection for vaccine manufacturers and persons who administer vaccines will likely be 
made available through congressional legislation. 

● Antiviral agents available for both treatment and prophylaxis during the pandemic will likely be 
available only for a limited distribution.  It will take six to eight months after the novel virus is 
identified before the vaccine is available for distribution unless a DNA vaccine is developed and 
deemed safe and necessary. 

● A second dose of vaccine (two to four weeks after the first) may be required to develop immunity 
to the novel virus. 
 

Role of the Health Department during a pandemic: 

Legal Authority of the Health Department:   
● The local health department has the authority to respond to a communicable disease outbreak, 

including a pandemic viral outbreak; and to perform the necessary functions to protect the public.  
Questions related to the legality of any functions of the Department of Health authority to protect 
the public during a public health emergency should be referred to appropriate local officials. 

● Declare a Public Health Emergency is occurring in that a novice virus has been identified. 
● Open Emergency Operating Center (EOC) with Emergency Management. 
● Opening and operation of a mass vaccination/prophylaxis clinics or Points of Dispensing (PODS) 

when, and if, treatments are available. 
● Work with agencies to offer vaccines to prioritized groups and individuals such as Health Care, 

Fire and EMS personnel.  
● Risk Communications-coordination with the EOC to provide simple and effective messages to the 

public.  In some instances, the state and hospital PIOs will be the spokespersons and oversee the 
coordination to release accurate information. 

● Quarantine and isolation of persons not at the hospitals. 

Community Partner Meetings:   

Albuquerque Aviation Academy has conducted meetings to coordinate with community partners about 
pandemic plans and required actions.  These partners included: 

● Bernalillo County Health Department 
● Local Emergency Management 
● Local Law Enforcement 
● School Officials 
● Government leaders 
● Local Medical Providers, Hospital(s) 

Pandemic Prevention Strategies: 

● Avoid close contact with people who are sick.  When you are sick, keep your distance from others 
to protect them from getting sick too.  Teach children not to share personal items like drinks, food, 
or unwashed utensils. 

● Stay home from work, school, and errands when you are sick.   
● Keep sick children at home until symptoms are gone (at least 24 hours after they no longer have 

a fever or do not have signs of a fever without using fever-reducing drugs).  Keeping children with 
a fever at home will reduce the number of people being infected. 

● Cover your mouth and nose.



 
 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  22 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

● Cover your mouth and nose with a tissue when coughing or sneezing.  Throw the tissue in the 
trash after you use it.  Cough or sneeze into your elbow or upper sleeve if there is no tissue. 

● Wash your hands often. 
● Washing your hands and the hands of your children often will help protect you from germs.  Wash 

your hands with soap and warm water for at least 20 seconds, especially after you cough and 
sneeze.  Alcohol-based hands cleaners are also effective. 

● Avoid touching your eyes, nose, or mouth. 
● Germs are often spread when a person touches something that is contaminated with germs and 

then touches his or her eyes, nose, or mouth. 
● Practice other good health habits. 
● Get plenty of sleep, be physically active, manage your stress, drink plenty of fluids and eat 

nutritious food. 

 

2.3 Behavioral and Mental Health (B/MH) 

Behavioral Health 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy is committed to providing an environment where all students can feel 
they can approach any staff member or counselor about any need or question regarding academics or 
health-related issues.  School staff, to include administrators, teachers, counselors, social workers, and 
nursing staff have all received training as part of their licensure to be able to recognize indicators that a 
student is potentially dangerous to himself or herself or signs of mental health-related issues.  

At Albuquerque Aviation Academy, teachers, administrators, or parents may request a Student Assistance 
Team (SAT) meeting to discuss concerns with a student’s academic performance, behavior or other area 
such as mental health and discuss ways to assist the student.  The SAT team consists of a classroom 
teacher, school administrator or representative, parent, student, and other appropriate members, such 
as a school counselor or social worker.  Through the SAT process a Multi-Layered System of Support 
(MLSS) protocol will be developed to assist the student with behavioral or mental health concerns.  MLSS 
is a holistic intervention framework that guides educators, those closest to the student, to intervene 
quickly when students need additional support.  The MLSS framework reflects the support the classroom 
teacher, school, family, and health and wellness staff offer toward readying students to experience 
academic, and behavioral success in school.  This approach will empower teachers to use their 
professional judgment, and make data-informed decisions regarding the students in their classrooms 

Based on the level of intervention determined by the team, the student may be referred to mental health 
professionals for intervention, consultation or other assistance or a positive behavioral health plan 
developed.  The SAT will identify the prescribed procedures to implement for appropriate intervention 
based on the needs of the school or the family. 

The SARS-COV-2 pandemic has brought to the surface the fragility of students and the realization that 
fear, anxiety, and feelings of doom are very real and require intervention.  To support the various teams 
that are formed to assist students, Albuquerque Aviation Academy has developed school wide and 
classroom social emotional activities that are being implemented as part of daily activities at the school.  
Staff is encouraged to greet each student daily with a visual signal, e.g., a smile, heart hands, thumbs up 
etc.   
 
Homeroom teachers are expected to hold discussions on managing emotions and students will be 
provided a safe location to decompress if needed.  The school will focus more on celebrating diversity and 



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  23 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

will encourage kindness.  Teachers will also work to incorporate social emotional activities into their 
lessons to ensure students always feel supported. 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy staff and counselors maintain an open-door policy for all students.  
Albuquerque Aviation Academy also maintains a staff of contracted psychologists and other mental health 
professionals to whom students can be referred.  The school has an active poster campaign directed at 
mental health issues.  These posters are designed to reduce the stigma attached to mental health issues, 
and they provide information as to where students can get assistance within the school.  The Albuquerque 
Aviation Academy health class curriculum provides students with a basic understanding of mental health 
issues and that there is nothing out of the ordinary to seek help.  
 
The staff of Albuquerque Aviation Academy works to reduce mental health stigma through compassion 
and working with the children to educate them to seek out help if they are having feelings they cannot 
understand.  At Albuquerque Aviation Academy, there is a culture of acceptance and kindness.  Character 
training is a vital component of Albuquerque Aviation Academy’s daily program.  Our character training 
revolves around individual student accountability focusing on recognizing and respecting individual 
differences and encouraging a growth mindset.  This has a direct impact on establishing a school climate 
where there is genuine empathy, concern, and care given to those individuals experiencing behavioral 
and mental health issues. 

Students are held accountable to always be kind and treat everyone with respect.  Students are taught 
that each person is unique and special.  Character traits and actions are incorporated into weekly school 
gatherings, daily classroom meetings and instructional curriculum.  Based on this tradition, students 
experiencing a behavioral or mental health issue are not treated by adults as problem children but are 
supported.  Adults model acceptance toward all students and the school engages in lesson guided 
activities that introduce this information to the student.  As a part of the education process, parents are 
also provided additional information by staff when a student is referred for mental health services. 

All school employees have received training to help them recognize the signs and symptoms of possible 
behavioral health issues to include depression and suicidal behaviors.  When a staff member suspects that 
a student may need assistance, the student is referred to the school social worker or Head Administrator, 
(See Section 2.5 of this plan for procedures.)  If there appears to be a credible issue, a referral will be made 
to a local mental health provider.  In cases that require reporting to CYFD, they will be notified 
immediately.  In cases where the student has been committing self-harm or has had suicidal ideations, 
the school will request that the parent/guardian provide documentation that a mental health professional 
has determined the student does not present a threat to themselves or others.  

Age of Consent for Mental Health Services  

Albuquerque Aviation Academy recognizes that under New Mexico Statute 32A-6A-15 NMSA 1978, a child 
fourteen years of age or older is presumed to have the capacity to consent to treatment without consent 
of the child's legal custodian, including consent for individual psychotherapy, group psychotherapy, 
guidance counseling, case management, behavioral therapy, family therapy, counseling, substance abuse 
treatment or other forms of verbal treatment that do not include aversive interventions.” In addition, 
NMSA 1978 § 32A-6A-14, the State Laws for Confidential Services, allows a child under fourteen years of 
age to initiate and consent to an initial assessment with a clinician.  A child under fourteen years of age 
may also initiate and consent to medically necessary early intervention service limited to verbal therapy 
if such service will not extend beyond two calendar weeks.   
 



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  24 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

Conflict Resolution/Mediation 

Mediation programs provide a means of nonviolent conflict resolution for students and staff to be used 
for disputes that arise in the school setting.  Students are trained as mediators who act as third party 
neutrals to help disputants reach agreements that are mutually satisfactory.  Mediation is a voluntary 
process; the mediator does not find fault or punish or decide out-comes, but helps parties reach 
agreements that will allow them to continue their relationship.  Albuquerque Aviation Academy provides 
these services through the school Social Worker, and Head Administrator.  Student conflict 
resolution/mediation is reported to parents who are notified of the outcome. 

Peer Facilitation 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy uses a peer facilitation strategy that pairs National Honor Society students 
with students who need help academically or socially.  These students may provide tutoring or serve as a 
study buddy.  Peer facilitation also takes place in a group setting. 

Mentoring 

The Albuquerque Aviation Academy Mentoring Program is an extension of Peer Facilitation where 
National Honor Society students mentor other students.  A community-based mentoring program is not 
in place at this time as community resources are limited.  This is something that would benefit our 
community and students.  Efforts are underway to determine local interest in participating.   

Referral Network 

In the case of suspected mental illnesses, the student can be referred to the family’s physician or to one 
of the mental health providers listed below. 
 

Provider Telephone Address 

Audra Hays – Albuquerque 
Aviation Academy Social 
Worker 
 

505-608-6441 
 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy 
6441 Ventana Rd NW 
Albuquerque, NM 87114 

First Choice Community 
Healthcare – Alameda Medical 
Center 

505-890-1458 
 

7704 2nd Street NW 
Albuquerque, NM 87107 

UNM Family Health, Westside 
Clinic 

505-272-2900 
 

4808 McMahon Blvd NW 
Albuquerque, NM 87114 

UNM Psychiatric Center (505) 272-2800 2600 Marble Ave 
Albuquerque, NM  87106 

Presbyterian Behavioral Health (505) 462-6400 8800 Montgomery Blvd. NE 
Albuquerque, NM  87111 

 
 



 
 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  25 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

2.4 Social Emotional Learning/School Climate Supports 

Social Emotional Learning 

At Albuquerque Aviation Academy, fostering the social-emotional well-being of students is a top 
priority, and we have implemented a comprehensive support system to ensure a positive and nurturing 
learning environment. Central to this effort is the presence of a full-time social worker on our staff. This 
dedicated professional plays a pivotal role in supporting students' social and emotional growth, 
addressing their unique needs, and promoting a positive school climate. 

The social worker collaborates with teachers, administrators, and parents to identify students who may 
benefit from additional support. Through one-on-one counseling sessions, group activities, and 
classroom interventions, the social worker helps students develop essential social and emotional skills. 
This proactive approach enables students to navigate challenges, build resilience, and form healthy 
relationships with their peers. 

Moreover, the social worker actively contributes to the creation of a positive school climate. By 
organizing workshops, awareness campaigns, and community-building events, they foster a sense of 
belonging and inclusivity among students. This not only enhances the overall well-being of individual 
students but also contributes to a harmonious and supportive atmosphere throughout the entire school 
community. 

In essence, the presence of a full-time social worker at our school underscores our commitment to the 
holistic development of our students. By prioritizing social-emotional learning and maintaining a positive 
school climate, we aim to provide an environment where students feel not only academically challenged 
but also emotionally supported as they navigate the various aspects of their educational journey. 

 

2.5 Bullying  

Bullying Policy 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy has adopted and abides by its Board Policy of having a zero-tolerance 
policy on bullying and cyberbullying.  Albuquerque Aviation Academy, through in-service training, 
provides training to all employees on how to recognize that one may be the victim of bullying or 
cyberbullying. 

All reports of any misconduct related to any form of bullying will be investigated by the Head 
Administrator or representative.  All investigations must be completed within ten days.  

The Albuquerque Aviation Academy Health Education curriculum includes programs that address bullying 
and bullying-related issues to include recognizing when one is being bullied, and where one can go to 
report bullying if they are a victim or are a witness to bullying.  

Bullying Prevention Resources 

 Stopbullying.gov:  https://www.stopbullying.gov/prevention/index.html. 

 Parent Advocacy Coalition for Educational Rights (PACER):  https://www.pacer.org/bullying/ 

 http://www.cartoonnetwork.com/stop-bullying/. 

 

2.6 Internet Use - Health & Safety Impacts 

Internet Use – Health & Safety Impacts 

http://www.stopbullying.gov/prevention/index.html
https://www.stopbullying.gov/prevention/index.html
http://www.pacer.org/bullying/
https://www.pacer.org/bullying/
http://www.cartoonnetwork.com/stop-bullying/


 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  26 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy is deeply committed to ensuring the safety of our students in the digital 
age, recognizing the diverse array of dangers that the internet presents. To address this, we have 
implemented a comprehensive internet safety program that goes beyond the classroom. Regular 
newsletters and updates on our website keep both students and their families informed about potential 
online risks and provide practical tips for maintaining a secure online presence. These resources cover a 
range of topics, from safeguarding personal information to recognizing and avoiding online threats. 

Today’s students are the first generation to have use of the Internet for their entire lives.  This 
unprecedented access to resources will enhance their learning, research, communications, expressions of 
creativity, and explorations for new ideas.  Unfortunately, this remarkable resource also has a dark side 
that poses a variety of dangers due to misuse and abuse that often targets youth.  Viruses that could harm 
your computer, child molesters that are trying to meet your child, and disclosure of personal information 
that could lead to identity theft are all risks inherent in using the Internet.  Every parent must recognize 
these dangers to help teach their children to protect themselves online. 

In addition to providing information, our school takes a proactive step by requiring all students to sign a 
Technology Use Agreement. This agreement outlines the responsible and safe use of technology both 
within and outside the school environment. It serves as a crucial tool in fostering a culture of responsible 
digital citizenship among our student body. 

To further enhance online safety, our school utilizes Go Guardian, a monitoring tool that allows us to 
keep a watchful eye on students' online activities. This ensures that students are using technology in a 
manner consistent with our school's guidelines and helps identify and address any potential issues 
before they escalate. 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy uses regular classroom curriculum that provides lessons on basic internet 
safety.  These lessons include: the dangers of giving out personal information online, recognizing when 
someone may be phishing online, as well as the dangers of going to inappropriate sites.  Students are also 
reminded not to create online friendships with anyone they do not know as well as not to meet up with 
anyone they met online.  

Albuquerque Aviation Academy complies with the Children’s Internet Protection Act (CIPA) in that it 
utilizes security and Web filtering software.  This software provides measures that block or filter Internet 
access to pictures that are: (a) obscene; (b) pornographic; or (c) harmful to minors.  This also provides 
how the monitoring of the online activities of students on the network can be carried out.  

In maintaining compliance with CIPA, Albuquerque Aviation Academy provides Cyber Safety Training for 
all students as appropriate.  This training includes appropriate online behaviors that include interacting 
with other individuals on social networking sites and chats, as well as cyber bullying awareness and 
response.  

Albuquerque Aviation Academy students are responsible for good behavior on school computer networks 
just as they are in a classroom or a school hallway.  Communications on the network are often public in 
nature.  General school rules for behavior and communications apply.  Access to network services is given 
to users who agree to act in a considerate and responsible manner.  Families should be warned that some 
material accessible via the Internet might contain items that are illegal, defamatory, inaccurate, or 
potentially offensive to some people.  While our intent is to make Internet access available to further 
educational goals and objectives, users may find ways to access other materials as well.  We believe that 
the benefits from access to the Internet, in the form of information resources and opportunities for 
collaboration, exceed any disadvantages.   



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  27 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

Parents are given a copy of the following Internet safety tips at the beginning of each year.   

The Internet offers a world of resources with the click of a mouse.  But there is a dark side to the 
Internet that poses a variety of dangers for our youth, such as viruses that could harm your computer; 
pedophiles who are trying to meet your child; and disclosing personal information that could lead to 
identity theft.  Every parent must recognize these dangers to help their child learn to protect his/her 
self-online.  The following are some safety tips for parents of elementary students who use the 
Internet. 

● Place the computer in a common area.  We strongly suggest that your child not have a computer 
in his or her room, or at least no Internet access on the computer in his or her room. 

● Learn to use the Internet.  Experience cyberspace with your child and learn how to check the 
browser “History” to see what websites your child is visiting. 

TEACH YOUR CHILDREN THE FOLLOWING RULES: 

 Never accept files or downloads from unknown sources; this includes familiar sources if 
you were not expecting them. 

 Choose an email address/ screen name that DOES NOT contain any part of your name, age, 
gender, interests, or favorite activities. 

 Do not fill out a profile without parental review and approval. 

 Never give out real name, telephone, or cell phone number(s), mailing address, or 
passwords. 

 Do not enter chat rooms. 

 Do not post photographs in publicly accessible sites. 

 The settings for ANY social networking profiles* should be PRIVATE, and new friends are 
accepted only if they are known to the child AND parent. 

 
● Talk to your child about dangers online.  Your child should know that: 

● Accepting files or downloads from unknown sources can include a virus that could harm 
the computer.  Giving away personal information can lead to identity theft or worse. 

● People may not be who they say they are online -- predators roam 
cyberspace. 

● Open communication with your child is vital.  Your children need to 
feel that they can come to you if they encounter frightening 
communications or images without fear of losing Internet privileges. 

● If you have a webcam, your child should use it ONLY if you are present.  Posting pictures 
online or sending images can have dangerous consequences.  Parents must control such 
activity. 

Note to Parents:  There are many organizations and activities in which your child may be involved 
that post information online in public locations.  It is extremely important for you to pre-approve 
any information about your child that will be posted for the world to see. Remember, cyber 
predators are looking too.  

By combining education, communication, and proactive monitoring, our school aims to create a secure 
digital environment where students can harness the power of the internet for learning while being 



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  28 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

equipped with the knowledge and tools to navigate potential risks responsibly. Internet safety is a 
collaborative effort, involving not only the school but also students, families, and the broader 
community. 

 

 



 
 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  29 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

 

Section III Protection & Mitigation 
3.1 Behavioral Threat Assessment Matrix 

A threat is a communication of intent to harm someone that may be spoken, written, gestured, or 

expressed in some other form, such as via text messaging, email, or other digital means. An expression 

of intent to harm someone is considered a threat regardless of whether it is communication to the 

intended target(s) and regardless of whether the intended target is aware of the threat. A transient 

threat means there is no sustained intent to harm and a substantive threat means the intent is present 

(or not clear) and therefore requires protective action. A threat assessment is not a crisis response. If 

there is indication that violence is imminent (e.g. a person has a firearm at school or is on the way to 

school to attack someone), a crisis response is appropriate. Take immediate action such as calling 911 

and follow the school crisis response plan. Reference: Dewey Cornell, PHD 

 

 



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  30 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 

3.2 Suicide Awareness and Prevention 

Suicide Prevention 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy recognizes the need to be aware of any indicators relating to the mental 
health of all students.  In addition to anonymous bully reporting, physical education classes provide 
additional instruction to students related to self-esteem, mental health, and other related issues.  Current 
staff, to include the Head Administrator, nurse, and social worker have all received training as part of their 
licensure, or through other professional development opportunities provided by Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy, to be able to recognize indicators that a student is potentially dangerous to himself or herself.  
They will exercise reasonable care to protect students from foreseeable harm.  

Albuquerque Aviation Academy is currently providing training opportunities to all staff to attend mental 
health and suicide warning signs training either internally to the school or with external sources.  The 
focus of this training is to introduce staff to risk factors and warning signs of mental illnesses and how to 
offer help in a mental health crisis and connect persons to the appropriate professional, peer, social and 
self-help care.  This training is designed to prepare the participants to interact with a person in crisis and 
connect the person with help.  

Albuquerque Aviation Academy has a staff that includes administrators, a social worker, and a nurse to 
whom students can be referred, to be connected to local resources.    

Threat Assessment 

Any school employee who observes or has reason to believe that a student may be depressed and/or 
suicidal must immediately report said observation and/or beliefs to the Head Administrator/designee.   

The Head Administrator/designee and/or school social worker will immediately contact the student, and 
an assessment will be initiated. 

The Albuquerque Aviation Academy Threat Assessment Team will conduct an immediate threat 
assessment.  

If the Albuquerque Aviation Academy Threat Assessment Team believes that the student needs further 
intervention, they will notify the parent/guardian and make a referral to an appropriate mental health 
agency for further assessment.  In the event the parent or guardian are not available, the appropriate law 
enforcement agency and social services departments will be notified. 

If the Albuquerque Aviation Academy Threat Assessment Team is uncertain of the student's potential risk 
for suicide, then the following actions may be taken: 



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  31 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

● The parent/guardian will be immediately apprised of the assessment results.  The school will also 
provide the parent/guardian with an address and telephone directory of mental health agencies, 
mental health hospitals, mental health professionals, psychologists, psychiatrists, and the Suicide 
and Crisis Lifeline (Dial 988).   

● The counselor will meet with the student the following morning to conduct a follow-up 
assessment and to ask the student to sign a written "No Suicide Contract" to ensure that the 
student:   

 Promises to not hurt himself/herself.   

 Will spend time with a relative and/or friend.   

 Will call the school social worker, psychologist, mental health professional, a member of 
the crisis intervention team, or the Suicide and Crisis Lifeline (Dial 988) if he/she/they 
need to speak to someone. 

If after counseling with students at risk for suicide, there is no significant improvement in the presenting 
behavior, the parents and Head Administrator will be notified by the school social worker and the student 
will be referred to an appropriate mental health agency for further assessment and treatment.  The school 
social worker, psychologist, or mental health professional involved will remain in contact with the 
parent/guardian to determine if the student has been referred to a mental health agency, hospital, 
psychologist, psychiatrist, or mental health professional. 

If a student receives services from an outside agency, the school social worker will maintain contact with 
that agency to ensure appropriate follow-up.  If there is a suicide attempt at school the following protocol 
will be implemented: 

Suicide Attempt at School:  

 Verify accuracy of information.  

 Call 911.  

 Calm the suicidal person.  

 Notify the Crisis Response Team.  

 IC notifies the Head Administrator/designee and parent/guardian if the suicidal person is a 
student.  The IC may schedule a meeting with parents and school psychologist/counselor to 
determine a course of action.  

 Isolate suicidal person from other students.  

 Stay with the person until the Crisis Response Team arrives.  Do not leave the suicidal person 
alone.  

 Determine the method of notifying staff, students, and parents.  

 Hold daily staff debriefings before and after normal operating hours as needed.  

 Activate the school Crisis Response Team to implement the post-crisis intervention plan and 
determine the level of intervention.  

 
Should the student commit suicide, the crisis intervention team will immediately implement prevention 
procedures to assist the school’s personnel, student body and families affected by the crisis. 
If there is a completed suicide at school the following protocol will be implemented: 

Suicidal Death or Serious Injury:  

 Verify accuracy of information.  

 Activate the school Crisis Response Team.  



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  32 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 The IC notifies the Governing Board President.  

 Notify staff in advance of the next school day, following suicide or attempted suicide.  

 Determine the method of notifying students and parents.  

 Protect the privacy of the suicidal person’s family.  

 Implement the post-crisis intervention plan.  
 

Post-Crisis Intervention:  

 Meet with school counseling staff and/or other mental health workers to determine the level of 
intervention for staff and students.  

 Designate rooms as private counseling areas.  

 Arrange for siblings, close friends and other “highly stressed” students to meet with counselors.  

 Assess stress levels of staff.  Recommend counseling to overly stressed staff.  

 Refer media to the PIO.  Do not allow the media to question students or staff.  

 Follow-up with students and staff who received counseling and resume normal routines as soon 
as possible.  

Suicide Prevention Resources 
Albuquerque Aviation Academy takes the threat of suicide very seriously and encourages all staff to be on 
the lookout for telltale signs of students in distress and to be proactive in reaching out to these students 
to address issues and seek help before issues exacerbate.  Recognizing the importance of peer-to-peer 
interaction, the school provides information to all students and families regarding information sources 
where students and families can seek help.  This information is distributed in registration packets, in 
posters displayed throughout the school and offices and made available to all staff.  This information 
includes: 

 988 Suicide and Crisis Lifeline 

 Action in Community Through Service 703-368-4141 

 Alternative House 1-800-SAY-TEEN 

 National Suicide Prevention Lifeline: 1-800-273-TALK (8255) Press 2 for Spanish 

 Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration-National Helpline 1-800-622-HELP 
or 1-800-799-4889 

 Treatment Advocacy Center 1-800-SUICIDE 

Websites 

American Foundation for Suicide Prevention: https://afsp.org/about-suicide/ 
National Suicide Prevention Lifeline: https://suicidepreventionlifeline.org/ 
 



 
 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  33 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

Crisis Intervention Team Roster 

Organization Name & Title Phone Number & E-mail 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy  

Amanda Catanzaro, Director of 
Operations  

505-715-3420 
acatanzaro@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy  

Bridget Barrett, Head Administrator 505-440-8511 
bbarrett@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy  

Gregory Leonard, Special Ed Teacher 505-298-2746 
gleonard@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy 

Audra Hays, Social Worker  505-280-0193 
ahays@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy  

Carla Gonzales, Registrar/Office 
Manager  

505-659-6290 
cgonzales@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Police 
Department  

Pete Gelabert, NW Crime Prevention 
Specialist 

505-768-4850 
pgelabert@cabq.gov 

Albuquerque Fire and 
Rescue 

Tim Pope, Fire Inspector 505-764-6300 
tpope@cabq.gov 

Bernalillo County 
Emergency Management 

Richard Clark, Director 505-468-1301 
rclark@bernco.gov 

Updated on: 11/9/2023 

QPR Training for Train the Trainer is available through the New Mexico Department of Health Training 
Program.   
 

Referral Network 

In the case of suspected mental illnesses, the student can be referred to the family’s physician or a 

number of mental health providers listed below: 

Provider Telephone Address 

Audra Hays – Albuquerque 
Aviation Academy Social 
Worker 
 

505-280-0193 
 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy 
6441 Ventana Rd NW 
Albuquerque, NM 87114 

First Choice Community 
Healthcare – Alameda Medical 
Center 

505-890-1458 
 

7704 2nd Street NW 
Albuquerque, NM 87107 

UNM Family Health, Westside 
Clinic 

505-272-2900 
 

4808 McMahon Blvd NW 
Albuquerque, NM 87114 

UNM Psychiatric Center (505) 272-2800 2600 Marble Ave 
Albuquerque, NM  87106 

Presbyterian Behavioral Health (505) 462-6400 8800 Montgomery Blvd. NE 
Albuquerque, NM  87111 

The Albuquerque Aviation Academy Crisis Intervention Team includes the Director of Operations, the 

Head Administrator, a Special Education Teacher, Social Worker, critical school staff, and community first 

mailto:acatanzaro@samsacademy.com
mailto:bbarrett@samsacademy.com
mailto:gleonard@samsacademy.com
mailto:jherring@samsacademy.com
mailto:cgonzales@samsacademy.com
mailto:pgelabert@cabq.gov
mailto:tpope@cabq.gov


 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  34 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

responders.  The team members consisting of the school social worker will take the lead due to their 

training and experience in crisis intervention. 

Between the ages of five and ten, a youngster begins to realize that everyone will die at some point, that 
emergencies occur that are beyond their control and that disasters and emergencies occur unexpectedly.  
Children often need help dealing with these fears and concerns.  Many students have experienced the 
death of a family member, a pet, a friend, or a relative.  The primary reason the school should respond to 
tragic, violent, emergency/disaster events is to provide a service that will return the student and the staff 
to a state of emotional and mental equilibrium, so all can return to productive work much sooner.  Given 
a nurturing climate, the grieving person will be able to regain a sense of balance much sooner.  Feelings 
that are repressed or denied do not simply go away.  They fester and eventually become barriers to 
learning, healthy relationships, and the total well-being of the student. 
 
Student Counseling 

Student counseling is critical in creating an emotionally and psychologically safe environment.  Addressing 
emotional, social, spiritual, mental, and physical wellbeing is vital to the education of the whole student.  
There is no other area where the need is greater than helping the student process and cope with all the 
adjustments necessary when something traumatic happens and/or when a student faces an 
emergency/disaster event. 

Critical Incident Stress Management (CISM) Protocol 

School staff who receive information about an incident will notify the Director of Operations who will, in 
turn, coordinate with counselors.   

If the incident is related to the death of a student, a family member or a member of the school staff, the 
Director of Operations will assign a team member to follow the student’s or staff’s schedule and assess 
the effect of the incident on staff or students.   

Students determined in need of assistance will need to be escorted by a CISM team member to a common 
gathering area.  Teachers SHOULD NEVER allow students to leave their classroom unattended.  Teachers 
will call the given contact number to request an escort for their student(s) to be taken to a common 
gathering area.  

There must be a sign in/sign out sheet at the common gathering area, and all students must be signed in 
or out to keep track of student movement.  

If an incident involves a particular sub-group (i.e., sports, band, cheer, etc.) an appropriate meeting place 
will be determined, and club sponsor (if a teacher) will be provided a sub for any classes necessary and 
will be allowed to stay with the students in their organization and at least one CISM team member.   

Teachers who had the student involved in the incident should adjust normal classroom assignments as 
needed and allow students to engage in alternate classroom assignments such as makeup work, extra 
credit projects or group interaction, etc.  The team member who has been assigned to follow the affected 
student's schedule will be stopping by to assess the classroom environment.   

The Head Administrator must approve any activity in which money will be collected.  Students will not be 
involved in this activity.  A collection container will be placed in each front office for those who wish to 
contribute.  At the conclusion of the school day, all proceeds collected must be turned in to the Office 
Manager for counting purposes. 



 
 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  35 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

Questions from the faculty and staff regarding the CISM protocol should be directed to the building CISM 
coordinator.  Questions that pertain to building administration in combination with CISM protocol will be 
referred to the administration team. 

The overriding goal of the CISM response team is to return the students to a sense of normalcy and 
structure ASAP. 

 



 
 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  36 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

Section IV Response 
 

4.1 Understanding Risks, Threats, and Hazards 
 
School Threat and Hazard Vulnerability Worksheet 
 

 

Historical 

Occurrence

Prob. Of 

Occurrence

Human 

Impact

Property 

Impact

Other 

Impact

Mitigation 

Activities

Internal 

Resources

External 

Resources
TOTAL

1 3 5 3 3 3 4 4 3.3

3 2 1 1 0 1 1 1 1.3

0 1 0 2 1 1 1 1 0.9

3 3 1 2 0 1 0 0 1.3

0 1 1 1 1 0 1 1 0.8

0 1 0 2 0 0 0 1 0.5

2 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 1.0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0

0 3 0 3 0 3 3 3 1.9

0 1 3 2 1 1 1 1 1.3

2 2 0 0 3 2 2 2 1.6

0 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1.1

0 1 2 3 0 1 0 1 1.0

0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0.9

0 1 2 2 0 0 0 2 0.9

0 1 3 2 0 0 0 2 1.0

0 1 4 0 1 4 3 3 2.0

0 1 5 1 1 3 3 2 2.0

0 1 0 3 1 4 3 2 1.8

2 2 2 3 1 3 1 2 2.0

0 2 2 2 1 1 1 2 1.4

0 1 5 2 0 1 1 0 1.3

0 1 1 2 1 0 2 2 1.1

0 1 2 0 0 2 2 2 1.1

0 2 3 0 0 1 1 1 1.0

0 1 2 1 0 1 1 1 0.9

0 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 0.8

0 1 2 1 0 0 0 1 0.6

Criminal Activity Near Campus

Suicide Threat/Attempt

Drive-by Shooting

Civil Disorder

Domestic Violence

Child Abuse/Neglect

Medical Emergency

Missing Child

Bomb Threat

Criminal Activity on Campus

Fire/Arson on Campus

Active Shooter

Loss of Power/Water

Transportation Emergency

Human-Caused

School Threat & Hazard Vulnerability Analysis Worksheet

Natural

Food-borne Illness

Dangerous Animal on/near Campus

Wildfire

Earthquake

Severe Thunderstorm/High Winds

School:     Southwest Aeronautics, Mathematics and 

Science Academy

District:     N/A

Address:   6441 Ventana Rd NW

                   Albuquerque, NMN  87114        A. Aguilar

Score 0-5

0= least  5= most

Threat or Hazard

    Medium Risk: 2.0 - 3.5

               Low Risk: < 2.0

Analysis Results: High Risk: > 3.5 

Date Completed:  12/22/2022

Completed By:  H. Aguilar

Flooding

Snowstorm/Severe Winter Weather

Pandemic

Cyber Attack

Technological

Tornado

Explosion

Natural Gas Leak/Loss

Hazardous Material Incident

IT/Communications Failure

Chem/Bio/Rad/Nuc Incident



 
 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  37 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

 
The Albuquerque Aviation Academy Safety Committee has identified these as the top potential threats 
and hazards faced by our school. The threats/hazards that are medium to high probability are all 
addressed in the Response section of this safety plan. 

Potential Threats and Hazards Probability of 

Occurring 

Warning Time Potential 

Consequences 

Fire Low Minimal or None High 

Active Shooter Low Minimal to None High 

Dangerous Animal on/near Campus Medium Minimal or None Moderate 

Trespassing Pedestrians High Minimal or None Moderate 

Snowstorms/Severe Winter Weather High More than 4 hours Moderate 

Loss of Power/Water/IT/Communications 

Failure 

Medium Minimal or None Low 

Domestic Violence/Criminal Activity Near 

Campus 

Medium Minimal or None Moderate 

Medical Emergency High Minimal or None High 

Missing Child Low Minimal to None High 

Hazardous Incident from Transport on 

Roads Near Schools 

Low Minimal to None Moderate 

 

In emergency situations staff are instructed to call 911 and have police officers, fire department, or 

medical help dispatched to our location.  Staff are certified in CPR, AED and First Aide Training every other 

year to assist in any medical emergencies. 



 
 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  38 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

 

The Albuquerque Aviation Academy Safety Committee has conducted an assessment and identified the 
following potential threats and hazards.  The Albuquerque Police Department, Mr. Peter Gelabert, NW 
Crime Prevention Specialist led an analysis of the assessment and was instrumental in developing 
hazard/threat priorities. 
 

Natural Threat Response to Threat 
Pandemic As evidenced, a viral pandemic can strike anytime. 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy has developed a 
comprehensive response plan for dealing directly with the 
pandemic.  This can be found in Section 2.2.  In addition, the 
process found in the Section 6.2 will be followed if the school 
is unable to occupy the facility as the result of a pandemic. 

Severe Thunderstorms/High 
Winds/Snow 

The mountains and plains of Northwest New Mexico are 
known for their high winds, thunderstorms, sandstorms, and 
snowstorms.  These are the most likely natural threat that will 
be encountered by Albuquerque Aviation Academy.  
Procedures from Section 5.17 will be followed. 

Dangerous Animals Near or On 
Campus 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy, being located on the West 
Mesa of Albuquerque is susceptible to having stray and 
unvaccinated animals wander on to campus.  In the case of 
such an incident, procedures from section 5.6 will be 
followed. 

Loss Of Power or Water Electrical power outages and the loss of water can happen at 
any time due to system failures, weather, or human-caused 
incidents . In the case of the loss of power or water follow the 
protocols listed in section 5.14.  If power or water services 
cannot be restored in a timely manner, it may result in school 
closure.  

It/Communication Failure In the event of an IT or communication systems failure at 
Albuquerque Aviation Academy, the technology contractor 
will be contacted via an alternate means such as a cellphone.  
The school site is provided with and will use cell phones to be 
able to communicate with the Head administrator, 
emergency services, and transportation services.   

Cyber Attack Cyber-attacks have become more common, and any 
institution using wired and wireless networks connected to 
the internet are susceptible to an attack.  In the case of a 
cyber-attack being discovered at Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy, the Technology Contractor will be contacted 
immediately.  All students and staff will immediately suspend 
the use of any technology connected via LAN or wireless to 
the school network.  



 
 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  39 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

Transportation Emergency Transportation emergencies can occur for any number of 
reasons to include other threats or attacks.  Albuquerque 
Aviation Academy is located on a major roadway that could 
be closed off in the case of an emergency or law enforcement 
action around the school.  In the case of a transportation 
emergency at Albuquerque Aviation Academy, the protocol 
listed in section 5.20 will be followed.  

Child Abuse or Neglect Albuquerque Aviation Academy may discover children who 
have suffered abuse or neglect.  CYFD representatives have 
trained all staff during in-service training for recognizing and 
the reporting of any suspected child abuse or neglect.  All staff 
understands the mandatory reporting requirements for such 
reporting. 

Criminal Activity on or Near Campus 
 

In cases of criminal activity observed by staff members or 
reported by students, law enforcement is notified.  If believed 
to be necessary to protect students and staff, the school may 
enter lockdown protocols as described in section 5.2. In the 
case of a law enforcement action in the area of the school, 
Albuquerque Aviation Academy will be placed either in 
lockdown or shelter in place as determined by the head 
administrator.  

Domestic Violence Albuquerque Aviation Academy is not immune from domestic 
violence.  If domestic violence is suspected 911 will be called 
immediately to protect students, staff, and others.  Domestic 
conflicts often include custody of children.  Albuquerque 
Aviation Academy could have incidents where a parent or 
guardian, who have been involved in domestic violence and 
have had no custodial rights, come to the school site to 
attempt to pick up children from the school.  In such a case 
law enforcement will be contacted immediately. 

Medical Emergencies Medical emergencies are quite common at schools and 
usually involve accidents on the playground or a person 
suffering a reaction due to a preexisting medical condition 
such as a seizure.  In the case of a medical emergency, the 
protocols listed in section 5.15 will be followed. 

Fires Fires on campus can be a real threat as not all fires are an act 
of arson.  Fires can be a result of several reasons to include 
the improper storage of chemicals, mechanical failures, 
electrical failures, and accidents.  Due to the number of 
students and staff present at the school, a fire presents a 
great danger to a large number of people.  In the case of a 
fire, the protocol for evacuation listed in section 5.2 will be 
followed. 

 



 
 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  40 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy Site Assessment  

The school was occupied as this safe school plan was developed.  The school is working with Pom’s & 
Associates to schedule a Site Security Assessment prior to the end of the school year. 

While the POMS assessment has not yet taken place a walkthrough was conducted with the Head of 
School and the Director of Operations using the Facility Safety Checklist to identify any security and safety 
concerns.  The assessment is on file at the school office. 

The inspection identified zero High-Priority or Medium-Priority issues.  Being a new campus, potential 
issues were addressed in design and construction.  Issues that arise will be addressed through the school’s 
maintenance program.   

Large windows in the office area face the parking area and automobile and pedestrian traffic is monitored. 
The main entrance to the school is off of Irving Boulevard and Ventana Road adjacent to residential areas.  
The school is set back from the roadway with a parking lot between the school and the main road where 
it minimizes the likelihood of a vehicle leaving the roadway would hit the school.  The student activity area 
is behind the school and students are not allowed to congregate in the front of the school during school 
hours.  

The following areas are of concern: 
● The large volume of vehicular traffic on Irving Blvd. throughout the day particularly during student 

pickup and drop off times.  Parents enter and exit from Ventana Road which intersects Irving and 
requires vehicles to turn onto oncoming traffic.   

● Staff directing traffic must remain vigilant.  
● At this time, no other major areas of concerns were found at Albuquerque Aviation Academy.  

 
The Albuquerque Aviation Academy Safety and Threat Assessment Team inspect the school’s fire 
extinguishers, emergency lights, and other safety items monthly.  Any safety concerns identified are 
quickly addressed as needed by the site maintenance person. 
 
Climate/Culture Assessment 
 
Albuquerque Aviation Academy conducts two site assessments annually.  The school uses a rubric to 

assess the quality and character of school climate and culture.  Interviews are conducted with parents, 

staff, and students.  The results are presented to the Governance Council when complete and are used by 

the administration and the board in future planning. 

Behavioral Threat Assessment  

The Behavioral Threat Assessment Team will analyze communication and behaviors to determine whether 
a student, staff, or other person may pose a threat.  The primary purpose of a behavioral threat 

assessment is to prevent targeted violence.  A behavioral threat assessment is designed to:   

 Gather information about students, staff or other persons who may potentially pose a threat 

before that threat develops into an incident.   

 Evaluate facts from the information gathered to help inform judgment about whether the person 

of concern is moving along a path toward attack on a target.  

 Determine whether a person poses a threat based upon the facts.  



 
 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  41 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

The Behavior Threat Assessment Team (TAT) will convene when a credible threat is received and operate 
under the following protocol



 
 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  42 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

 

 

 

 

  

Staff is Made Aware of a Situation

Report to Head Administrator

Investigation Determines Little or 
No Risk

Investigation Determines a 
Threat Assessment is Warranted

Continue to Monitor Follow Due Process
Communicate with 

Parents/Others as needed

Convene Threat Assessment Team at 
School to Review Situation and 

Determine:

To Create a Threat Assessment Plan
Employ an Intervention Strategy

Communicate with Parents and Others as Needed

Current Plan is Adequate
Monitor the Situation

Communicate with Parents/Others as Needed 

To Create a Threat Assessment Plan
Employ a Protective Plan & Intervention

Communicate with Parents and Others as 
Needed

File Informal Review Form in 
Confidential Student File

File Threat Assessment in a Sealed Envelope and 
Place in Confidential Student File.  Place a 

Second Copy in Discipline File

SAMS Academy
Threat Assessment Protocol



 
 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  43 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

Behavioral Threat Assessment Team 

Organization Name & Title Phone Number & E-mail 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy  

Amanda Catanzaro, Director of Operations  505-715-3420 
acatanzaro@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy 

Bridget Barrett, Head Administrator 505-440-8511 
bbarrett@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy 

Gregory Leonard, Special Ed Teacher 505-298-2746 
gleonard@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy 

Audra Hays, Social Worker  505-280-0193 
ahays@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy 

Carla Gonzales, Registrar/Office Manager  505-659-6290 
cgonzales@samsacademy.com 

AFR Fire Marshall Tim Pope, Fire Inspector 505-164-6300,  
tpope@cabq.gov 

Albuquerque Police 
Department 

Pete Gelabert, NW Crime Prevention 
Specialist 

505-831-4705 
pgelabert@cabq.gov 

Updated on: 11/04/2022 

4.2 Drills and Exercise Planning 
 
Drills and exercises are a key component of national preparedness—they provide schools, districts, and 
stakeholders from across the whole community with the opportunity to shape planning, assess and 
validate capabilities and address areas for improvement.  These priorities guide the overall direction of a 
progressive exercise program, where individual exercises are anchored to a common set of priorities or 
objectives and build toward an increasing level of complexity over time. Through improvement planning, 
schools take the corrective actions needed to improve plans, build, and sustain capabilities, and maintain 
readiness. 

Consideration for AFN and LEP students include the following: 

● Physical disabilities that might impede mobility.  

● Physical disabilities that might impede access to instructions, e.g., hearing or sight impairment. 

● Sensory disabilities that might heighten a distress reaction and/or impede response to instruction. 

● Cognitive disabilities that might impede understanding a situation and instructions.   

The Special Education Staff are familiar with each of the identified students and have crafted plans to 

assist them in the event of an emergency.  Many of these accommodations are included in a student’s IEP 

which is crafted in consultation with parents, teachers, and the school administration.   

Limited English Proficiency Students (LEP), when enrolled are given a “buddy” that can communicate and 

aid them during drills. 

 

Emergency First Responders involved in drills:  Pete Gelabert, NW Crime Prevention Specialist with the 

Albuquerque Police Department, Tim Pope, Fire Inspector with Albuquerque Fire and Rescue and Richard 

mailto:acatanzaro@samsacademy.com
mailto:bbarrett@samsacademy.com
mailto:gleonard@samsacademy.com
mailto:jherring@samsacademy.com
mailto:cgonzales@samsacademy.com
mailto:tpope@cabq.gov


 
 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  44 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

Clark, Bernalillo County Director of Emergency Management were invited by the school to evaluate our 

Fire Drill, Shelter-in-Place, Active Shooter, Evacuation and Relocation/Reunification Plans and offer 

suggestions on improvement strategies.  When we practice these procedures, we invite these same 

agencies to assist us in evaluating our systems and to provide feedback on procedure changes or other 

improvements to make. 

Emergency Drill Considerations for Access Functional Needs (AFN) and Limited English Proficiency (LEP) 

At Albuquerque Aviation Academy, we are committed to providing a safe and inclusive learning 

environment for all students. Recognizing the diverse needs of our student population, we have 

developed a comprehensive emergency preparedness plan that specifically addresses the unique 

requirements of students with Access Functional Needs (AFN) and those with Limited English Proficiency 

(LEP). 

Considerations for Students with Access Functional Needs (AFN): 

1. Individualized Emergency Plans: 

   - We will work closely with parents/guardians, teachers, and support staff to develop individualized 

emergency plans for students with AFN. These plans will consider specific mobility, communication, and 

medical needs, ensuring a tailored response in case of an emergency. 

2. Specialized Training for Staff: 

   - Staff members will receive training on assisting students with diverse access functional needs during 

emergency situations. This includes understanding the operation of assistive devices, communication 

methods, and specific evacuation procedures. 

3. Regular Drills and Simulations: 

   - We will conduct regular emergency drills that take into account the diverse needs of our students, 

including those with AFN. This will help familiarize both students and staff with the procedures tailored 

to different functional needs. 

4. Accessible Evacuation Routes: 

   - Clearly marked and accessible evacuation routes will be established throughout the school premises. 

These routes will consider various mobility challenges, ensuring that all students can safely evacuate in 

any emergency situation. 

 

Considerations for Students with Limited English Proficiency (LEP): 

1. Multilingual Communication Strategies: 

   - Emergency communication will be disseminated in multiple languages to ensure that 

parents/guardians and students with Limited English Proficiency can understand critical information. This 

includes translating emergency plans, announcements, and instructions. 



 
 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  45 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

2. Language Support Staff: 

   - During emergencies, language support staff will be deployed to assist students and parents/guardians 

with Limited English Proficiency. These individuals will facilitate communication and provide guidance as 

needed. 

3. Culturally Competent Training for Staff: 

   - Staff members will receive training on cultural competence to better understand and address the needs 

of students with Limited English Proficiency during emergency situations. This includes sensitivity to 

diverse cultural practices and communication styles. 

 

Communication with Parents/Guardians: 

1. Transparent Information Sharing: 

   - Regular communication channels will be established to keep parents/guardians informed about the 

school's emergency preparedness plans. This will include information about specific measures in place for 

students with AFN and LEP. 

2. Individualized Consultations: 

   - The school will schedule individual consultations with parents/guardians of students with AFN or LEP 

to ensure that their specific concerns and requirements are considered in the emergency preparedness 

plan. 

 

By implementing these measures, we aim to create an inclusive and safe environment for all students at 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy. Our commitment to emergency preparedness reflects our dedication to 

the well-being of every member of our school community. We appreciate the collaboration of 

parents/guardians, staff, and students in ensuring the success of these initiatives. 

 

4.3 Review, Revise, Secure, and Share the Plan 

The Albuquerque Aviation Academy Safety Committee meets at least once a year near the beginning of 
the school year to review the plan as well as update rosters.  The plan is shared with our community 
partners in person.  This plan is not uploaded where there it can be accessed by anyone outside of those 
who need to review, update, or review it.  The Albuquerque Aviation Academy Office maintains a record 
of our partners with whom this plan has been shared.  
 

4.4 Access Control 
 
Albuquerque Aviation Academy is in a new building that opened in 2023 that has secure access to the 

main entrance with windows looking over the parking area.  The campus is fenced on all sides but could 



 
 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  46 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

be compromised by animals or humans from a residential area to the west and while gates are open 
during the day.  The school address is:  
 
6441 Ventana Road NW 
Albuquerque, NM 87114 
 
The school is comprised of a single building and all visitors are required to enter through one main door 
to the office area.  The main entrance is monitored by a staff member that can see who is approaching 
before allowing entry.  Staff and students enter the school through one of two other entrances.  All other 
entrances of the building have been reconfigured to act as emergency exits.  Parents drop off and pick up 
is at the east side of the school and is scheduled so all students are not congregating at the front of the 
school at one time.  Students who drive their own vehicles proceed to the west side of the building to the 
student parking area and enter through a single entrance. 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy will undergo a Loss Control and Safety Audit by Poms and Associates in 
2023-2024.  At present, the following components of secure School Entrances are being implemented: 

 Single point entry for all visitors.  

 Staff monitoring of arrival and dismissal times. 

o Albuquerque Aviation Academy has staff assigned to monitor students as they arrive and 
depart the school in the morning and afternoon.  

Visitor management  

All persons entering the campus who are not school staff or students are considered either visitors or 
volunteers.  All visitors or volunteers at the school are required to check in at the office and receive a 
visitors badge that must be worn at all times while in the building.  Visitors and volunteers are required 
to sign out upon departure from the school.  All school staff must wear school issued identification badges 
at all times while on campus.  Any person, not a student and not displaying a pass or ID are stopped by 
school staff and directed to the front office.  Albuquerque Aviation Academy pledges to make every effort 
to ensure the safety of our students. 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy is equipped with a state-of-the-art digital video monitoring system that 
is continuously recording. This system monitors the main entrance, other entries and exits and the 
campus in general. The front office staff of the school monitors these cameras throughout the day and 
reports any suspicious activity to the Director of Operations. 

 

4.5 Facility Safety 

 
Facility Safety 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy is regularly inspected by the Director of Operations, Head Administrator, 
representatives of the NM Fire Marshall’s office, and Poms & Associates to ensure the facilities are safe 
for students and staff.  Albuquerque Aviation Academy maintains records of inspections.  The new school 
facility was occupied in January of 2023.  Poms and Associates is scheduled to visit the campus during the 
2023-2024 school year to complete the initial loss control a safety audit.  Albuquerque Aviation Academy 
staff are encouraged to report anything they find that is unsafe and to place a work order to have items 
addressed.  



 
 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  47 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

These inspections include inspecting all areas around the school buildings.  For any equipment found to 
be a potential safety hazard, use is suspended until repairs are complete or the unsafe items are removed.  
In addition, Albuquerque Aviation Academy staff are directed to inspect all common areas daily to identify 
any safety issues.  The school maintains a record of equipment and playground inspections.   

Traffic Safety, Pick Up/Drop-Off 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy promotes safety by abiding by the following rules when dropping off or 
picking up students: 

● Remind students to cross the roadway only at the designated crosswalks. 
● Fire lanes must be observed.  The fire lanes are along the front of the main building off Irving Blvd.  
● Cars should not be parked in fire zones and may be ticketed. 
● The school does provide transportation.  Bus drop-off is on the west side of the building away 

from the parent drop off areas.  
● The parent pick-up area is on the east side of the school along Ventana Road and cars are directed 

to park with the direction of traffic travel.   
● The speed limit in the school area during parent pick-up hours is 15 miles per hour.  Staff is 

positioned to direct students to their pickup vehicle and students are allowed to enter the pickup 
area only after a pickup vehicle is identified and ready to receive the student.   

● It is NEVER permitted to drive in reverse in the drive-through or parking lot (except when backing 
from parking space). 

All staff must wear safety vests when providing traffic control or working around any moving vehicles.



 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  48 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

Playing Fields/Playground Safety 

 
Albuquerque Aviation Academy receives regular inspections from the New Mexico Public School 
Insurance Authority, and Poms & Associates.  These inspections include inspecting all areas around the 
school buildings.  The following checklist is used by the administration and staff to document playground 
inspections.   Inspection reports are turned in to the office for action if required.  Copies of the inspection 
reports are kept in the school office. 
 

 

4.6 Bicycle Safety 
Traffic along Irving Blvd NW is significant and as such, students at the Albuquerque Aviation Academy.  
For those students that choose to ride their bikes to school, Albuquerque Aviation Academy participates 
in the Safe Routes to Schools program.  Students assume full responsibility for the care and use of their 
bicycles including a lock.   State laws also apply.  The Child Helmet Safety Act of 2007 requires helmets for 
all minors under age 18 riding on bicycles, scooters, skates, and tricycles. 

The Head Administrator may deny the privilege of riding a bicycle to school for any student who fails to 
comply with state law or school rules and regulations.  Parents of students who habitually or willfully 
violate safety rules will be notified, and student privileges may be revoked. 

A bicycle is not a toy.  It is a vehicle!  Head injuries are the most serious injury type and the most common 

cause of death among bicyclists.  More than half of all bicyclist deaths occur among school age youth (ages 

5-17).  Albuquerque Aviation Academy emphasizes the following bicycle safety tips for parents and 

students: 



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  49 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 

● All students riding bicycles should wear an approved bike helmet.  An approved helmet has 
a sticker inside, certifying that the helmet meets standards of the Snell Memorial Foundation 
and/or the American National Standards Institute. 

● To help ensure that the helmet is worn every time the student rides, let the student help 
pick out the helmet.  If the parent is a rider, s/he should also wear a helmet to set a good 
example.  Parents should also encourage their child’s friends to wear helmets. 

● Make certain that the bike is the right size for the student, is safely maintained, and has 
reflectors. 

● Student must walk their bikes on the school campus and at the crosswalk for the safety of 
those walking.   

● Students under age nine should not ride their bikes in the street.  They are not able to 
identify and adjust to the many dangerous traffic situations.  When available, ride in 
designated bicycle lanes. 

● Teach students always to stop and look left, right, and left again, before entering the road.  
This is a good pedestrian safety practice, too, for crossing the street. 

● If a bicyclist rides in the road, the cyclist must obey traffic laws that apply to motor vehicle 
operators.  Instruct students on the bicycle rules of the road.  Bicyclists should ride single file 
on the right side and signal their intentions to other road users. 

● Never allow students to ride at night or with audio headphones.  Stress the need to ride 
alert since many drivers do not see or acknowledge riders. 

These resources and tips are available to Parents and Students.   
  

 

4.7 School Security Staff 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy does not have full-time security staff on its campuses.  The school 

partners with the Albuquerque Police Department to respond to security issues as needed.  The 

Albuquerque Police Department participates in planning and drills and are a vital part of our school 

community. 

 

4.8 Incident Command System  

It is critical to have a plan in place that informs EVERY staff member of the plan and his/her role in the 

system.  

The section below is an introduction that every staff member needs to read.  

 

 All School Principals or designated Incident Commanders are required to complete the following training:   



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  50 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

Incident Command System (ICS) FEMA Training:  

 FEMA Online Independent Study Course IS-100.C: Introduction to the Incident Command 

System  

 https://training.fema.gov/is/courseoverview.aspx?code=IS-100.c  

 

Introduction to the Incident Command System (ICS)  

Every complex job/situation needs to be organized, and emergency management in schools is no 

exception. The Incident Command System (ICS) is the nationwide standard for emergency management, 

preparedness, and response. The model is an expandable system of emergency management which has 

proven to be workable from small events to large disasters and is currently in use by most agencies across 

the country.  

A basic premise to ICS is that in an emergency staff will transition from their day-to-day job to a similar 

function in addressing that emergency. For example, in an emergency the principal will become the 

"Incident Commander."  

Every emergency is dynamic, but not all incidents will require full activation of the ICS team. The ICS 

system allows for a scalable response that fits the needs of the emergency.   

Division of Labor  

The major concept behind ICS is that every emergency, no matter how large or small, requires that certain 

tasks and functions, be performed. The organization can expand or contract according to the size of the 

emergency and the staff available. Main divisions of ICS are Command/Management, Operations, 

Logistics, Planning/ Intelligence, and Administration/Finance.  

District Level supervision will typically not be part of the initial response at a school emergency. 

Superintendents shall coordinate actions through principals at the scene or through designated incident 

commanders at the incident site.   

• In the event the Superintendent are on campus, they may become Incident Command or apart 

of the Command Staff  

School level supervision is critical to the response of an emergency. School staff on-scene are true first 

responders for a school emergency. It is vital that all school staff know their roles before, during and after 

an incident.   

• Unified Command will be established by first responders as needed, who may have different 

legal, geographic and functional authorities/responsibilities.   

Only the Schools IC will join unified command with first responders. The schools SRO and 

Facilities Officers will communicate critical information to the school IC as 

requested/required.   



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  51 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

• Span of Control refers to the number of individuals or resources that one supervisor can manage 

effectively during an incident. The span of control is one supervisor to five subordinates or tasks. 

(1:5). However, effective incident management mat requires ratios significantly different from 

this.   

4.9 School Incident Command System and Roles  

The following roles and responsibilities may be implemented based on the size and scope of the school 

and incident.  

School Incident Command and Support Staff   

• Incident Commander (IC)  

- Provides overall direction of response at school site; initiates appropriate emergency response;  

communicates with local public safety and school district representatives.  

- Joins Unified Command that has been established by responding emergency services.  

• School Resource Officer   

- Follow commissioned agencies protocols in coordination with school policies and procedures.  

- Ensure collaboration with school IC and first responders.  

• School Facility Officer  

- Works directly with IC and unified command to ensure detailed school information is provided.  

- Survey and report damage related to main utilities  

School Command Staff   

• School Safety Officer  

- Ensures activities are conducted in safe manner; assures safety of personnel (staff, students, 

volunteers, and responders).  

• School Operations Officer  

- Ensure the schools response operations are be conducted in accordance with the school’s 

emergency operations plans, and at the direction of the IC.  

• School Accountability Officer    

- Ensures that all staff and students are accounted for during and after the incident.  

All Other School Staff  

• Designated Accountability Staff  



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  52 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

- Ensure designated groups have been accounted for and report all information to the 

Accountability Officer  

• School Security  

- Follow department protocols and procedures for emergency response.  

• Teachers   

- Responsible for the supervision of students and shall remain with students until directed 

otherwise.  

- Take steps deemed necessary to ensure the safety of students and render first aid if necessary.  

- Shall exercise due diligence in accounting for and reporting missing their students:  

- Will maintain rosters, First-Aid kits, and Go-Kits  

• School Nurses  

- Provide first aid or emergency treatment and communicate first aid and emergency treatment 

needs to emergency service personnel.  

• All Other School Staff   

- Shall respond at the direction of the incident commander and render first aid, if necessary.  

- Attempt to maintain established communication protocols.  

- Take steps deemed necessary to ensure the safety of students, staff, and other individuals. 

 
The Albuquerque Aviation Academy uses the ICS Command System (ICS) in response to all incidents that 
occur on school sites or school-related activities.  

The ICS is a standardized, on-scene, all-hazards incident management approach that: 

● Allows for the integration of facilities, equipment, personnel, procedures, and communications 
operating within a common organizational structure. 

● Enables a coordinated response among various jurisdictions and functional agencies. 

● Establishes common processes for planning and managing resources.  ICS is flexible and scalable 
depending upon incident size and duration, as well as the availability of personnel and can be 
used for incidents of any type, scope, and complexity. 

● Allows its users to adopt an integrated organizational structure to match the complexities and 
demands of single or multiple incidents. 

ICS is used by all levels of government—Federal, State, tribal, and local—as well as by many non-
governmental organizations and the private sector.  The ICS is also applicable across disciplines—fire, law 
enforcement, emergency medical services.  It is typically structured to facilitate activities in five major 
functional areas: Command, Operations, Planning, Logistics, and Finance/Administration.  All these 
functional areas may or may not be used based on the incident needs.  For most school-based 



 

 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  53 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

emergencies, it is unlikely that all the major functional areas will be operationalized, as first responders 
will manage much of the response. 

The school, through either the Albuquerque Police Department or NM State Police, conducts Active 
Shooter training once a year during the first week’s teachers and staff return to work for the school year.  
Certificates of completion are on file in the school administration office at each school. 



 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  54 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

School Incident Command Assignment Roster 

 
Albuquerque Aviation Academy 

School District:  N/A 

School Address: 6441 Ventana Rd NW 
                            Albuquerque, NM 87114 

Head Administrator Name: Bridget Barrett 
 

ICS 

Assignment 

Primary Secondary 

 

Incident 
Commander 

Name:  Amanda Catanzaro 
Cell #:  505-715-3420 
E-mail:  acatanzaro@samsacademy.com 

Name: Bridget Barrett 
Cell #:  505-440-8511 
E-mail:  bbarrett@samsacademy.com 

Public 
Information 

Office 

Name:  Amanda Catanzaro 
Cell #:  505-715-3420 
E-mail:  acatanzaro@samsacademy.com 

Name: Bridget Barrett 
Cell #:  505-440-8511 
E-mail:  bbarrett@samsacademy.com 

 

Safety Officer 

Name: Gregory Leonard 
Cell #:  505-298-2746 
E-mail:  gleonard@samsacademy.com 

Name:  Amanda Catanzaro 
Cell #:  505-715-3420 
E-mail:  acatanzaro@samsacademy.com 

 

Liaison Officer 

Name: Bridget Barrett 
Cell #:  505-440-8511 
E-mail:  bbarrett@samsacademy.com 

Name:  Amanda Catanzaro 
Cell #:  505-715-3420 
E-mail:  acatanzaro@samsacademy.com 

 
Operations 

Chief 

Name: Bridget Barrett 
Cell #:  505-440-8511 

E-mail:  bbarrett@samsacademy.com 

Name:  Amanda Catanzaro 
Cell #:  505-715-3420 

E-mail:  acatanzaro@samsacademy.com 

 
Planning 

Chief 

Name:  Amanda Catanzaro 
Cell #:  505-715-3420 
E-mail:  acatanzaro@samsacademy.com 

Name: Bridget Barrett 
Cell #:  505-440-8511 
E-mail:  bbarrett@samsacademy.com 

 

Logistics 
Chief 

Name:  Paula Gonzales 
Cell #:  505-459-5688 
E-mail:  pgonzales@samsacademy.com 

Name: Carla Gonzales 
Cell #:  505-659-6290 
E-mail:  cgonzales@samsacademy.com 

 
Finance 

Chief 

Name: Sean Fry 
Cell #:  505-215-1987 
E-mail:  sfry@samsacademy.com 

Name:  Paula Gonzales 
Cell #:  505-459-5688 
E-mail:  pgonzales@samsacademy.com 

 

 

mailto:pgonzales@samsacademy.com
mailto:pgonzales@samsacademy.com


 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  55 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

PERSONNEL GUIDE 
 
Director of Operations /Designee 

The Director of Operations /designee shall serve as Incident Commander and shall be responsible for the 

overall direction of the emergency procedures at the school or support building site.   

Responsibilities include: 

● Taking steps deemed necessary to ensure the safety of students, staff, and other individuals in 
the implementation of emergency management protocols. 

● Determining which situation is appropriate (Evacuation; Shelter-In-Place; Lockdown). 

● Activating the school Incident Command System (ICS) and notifying the Albuquerque Police 
Department and Albuquerque Fire and Rescue to establish a unified command of the incident. 

● Working with emergency service personnel and transferring School IC role to IC who has 
jurisdiction for managing the Unified Command structure, investigations, rescue procedures. 

o The Albuquerque Police Department and Albuquerque Aviation Academy currently hold 
joint training in Active Shooter drills and APD monitors and participates in emergency 
drills.   

● Notifying the Governing Council President and external stakeholders. 

● Arranging for transfer of students, staff, and other individuals when a disaster threatens safety. 

● Maintaining a line of communication with the Governing Board Chair. 

Teachers 

Teachers shall be responsible for the supervision of their students and shall remain with students until 

directed otherwise.  They shall: 

● Take steps deemed necessary to ensure the safety of students, staff, and other individuals in the 
implementation of IC. 

● Direct students in their charge according to school IC. 
● Render first aid if necessary. It is recommended that teachers should be trained and certified in 

first aid and CPR. 
● Teachers must have their roll books with them. 
● Take roll when the class relocates to assembly area. 
● Report missing students and staff to school’s Operations designee. 
● Assist as directed by the building administrator/designee. 
● Special Education Teachers will be familiar with AFN students and will support these students.   
● Limited English Proficiency Students (LEP) will be supported by second language teachers who can 

communicate and aid them during drills. 



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  56 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

Counselors, Social Workers, Ancillary Staff  
 
Counselors, social workers, and ancillary staff, when on-site shall be responsible for assisting the overall 
direction of the emergency procedures at the site.  Responsibilities may include: 

● Taking steps deemed necessary to ensure the safety of students, staff, and other individuals in 
the implementation of the Emergency Management Protocol. 

● Directing students in their charge according to school ICS. 
● Rendering first aid if necessary. 
● Assisting in the transfer of students, staff, and other individuals when a disaster threatens their 

safety. 
● Helping coordinate the activities of emergency service personnel. 
● Maintaining a line of communication with the Incident Command Team. 
● Assisting as directed by the building administrator/designee. 

 
Health Assistant/Head Administrator 

● The school does not have a full-time nurse.  The school health assistant will assume first aid 
responsibilities. 

● Provide first aid or emergency treatment as needed. 
● Document all students aided and the types of treatment provided. 
● Communicate first aid and emergency treatment needs to emergency service personnel. 
● Assist as directed by the Director of Operations /designee. 

 
Custodians 

● Survey and report damage to Director of Operations /designee. 
● Assist emergency management protocol as directed. 
● Control main shut-off valves for gas, water, and electricity and assure that no hazard results from 

broken or downed lines. 
● Assist the Logistics designee in the conservation, use, and disbursement of supplies and 

equipment.  
 
School Secretary 

● Assist as directed by the Director of Operations /designee. 
● Account for all staff and faculty; keep track of and report all missing staff and faculty to the Head 

Administrator/designee. 
● Provide for the safety of essential school records and documents. 

 
Transportation Drivers – from the contract bus provider: 

● Supervise the care of students if an emergency occurs while students are in the vehicle. 
● Transfer students to a new location when directed by the dispatcher or authorized regulatory 

agency. 
● Follow school procedures as directed by transportation policy for emergency situations, including 

a plan of action for the following reasons: 
o vehicle trouble requiring evacuation  
o vehicle trouble not requiring evacuation 
o passenger trouble requiring transportation personnel intervention 
o passenger trouble requiring police intervention 
o passenger trouble requiring medical intervention accidents 



 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  57 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

  



 
 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  58 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 



 
 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  59 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 



 
 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  60 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 



 
 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  61 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 



 
 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  62 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 



 
 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  63 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 



 
 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  64 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 



 
 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  65 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 



 
 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  66 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 



 
 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  67 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 



 
 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  68 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 



 
 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  69 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 



 
 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  70 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 



 
 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  71 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 



 
 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  72 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 
4.11 EVACUATION 
 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY FIRE EVACUATION MAP 



 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  73 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

Evacuation procedures are used in a variety of school emergency situations when remaining in the 
building is unsafe.  Evacuation means to move building occupants from the building to a pre-designated 
safe area.  A fire alarm will signal an evacuation, direction from the school site administrator over the 
intercom or other emergency notification system, or by the instruction of emergency response personnel.  
Some evacuations may involve moving students and staff to an alternate or off-campus site.  If an 
evacuation is other than for a fire or fire drill, further instructions should be given. 
 
Variations on Evacuation: 

Fire Drill: All students and staff will exit the buildings and go to their pre-designated locations outside of 
the school.  Teachers and staff will follow the school policy for student accountability.   

Under Escort: During a lockdown, law enforcement will enter the school with the mission of stopping the 
threat.  As more officers are deployed, there may be a need to evacuate individual classrooms or areas 
under escort.  In most cases, students and staff will be asked to evacuate in a single file with hands empty 
and showing.  Instructions from law enforcement will likely include these directives: do not take personal 
belongings with you; do not talk or use electronic devices and follow all instructions of law enforcement 
officers.  Students may be escorted to buses or walked to an off-campus site. 

Reverse Evacuation: Used to move staff and students who are outside the school buildings inside in a 
quick and orderly fashion when circumstances inside are safer than outside.  A reverse evacuation order 
is often followed by a shelter-in-place, lockout, or lockdown order, depending upon the circumstances. 

To Off-Campus Site: This may require long distance walks or school-provided transportation to a pre-
designated site due to the school campus being unsafe.  In the case of students having to be taken to an 
off-campus site, parent notification and reunification procedures will be followed.  

The off-campus evacuation site that has been identified for Albuquerque Aviation Academy is CNM-
Westside located about one mile from the school.  The address of the evacuation site is 10549 Universe 
Blvd NW, Albuquerque, NM 87114.   

The contact number for staff to ensure the facility is ready to accept students is 505-224-3000.  See section 
6.1 of this plan for protocols on re-location and reunification.  

 



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  74 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 



 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  75 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

4.12 Shelter in Place 
 
Shelter-in-Place procedures are used when the building is seen as a place of safety but locking down the 
building is not necessary.  A shelter-in-place often requires building occupants to remain in a school 
building for extended periods of time during an event.  To Shelter-in-Place means to take shelter where 
you are and isolate the inside environment from the outside environment.  Additional threat/hazard-
specific directions may be needed, depending upon the emergency. 
  

 

1. Instruct staff to Shelter-In-Place by 

a pre- designated signal (PA, bell 

system, verbal, written, etc.) that 

requires all persons outside to go 

indoors. 
 

2. Call: 9-1-1 or emergency services. 
 

3. Make sure persons with special 

needs are given assistance in 

getting to shelter. 
 

4. Ensure that maintenance staff shut 

all exterior doors and shut off all 

ventilation systems. (Consider 

taping doors and windows.) 
 

5. Notify Principal/Governing Board 

Chair 
 

6. Make sure that people stay in 

shelters. (Use your best 

judgment in allowing visitors 

into a shelter.) 
 

7. Communicate with police and fire 

departments to determine any 

change in the situation.  Get/give 

periodic updates. 
 

8. Communicate the all-clear signal 

once police and fire departments 

deem appropriate. 
 

1. Make sure all students go inside. 
 
2. Make sure persons with special 

needs are given assistance in getting 

to shelter. 
 
3. Close all windows and doors to the 

shelter area. (Consider taping 

doors and windows.) 
 
4. Turn off all ventilation that may 

bring in air from outside. 
 
5. If the air within the shelter appears 

to be contaminated, inform the 

office of the problem. 
 
6. Account for all students; keep 

track of and report all missing 

students to the office. 
 
7. Discourage use of cell phones. 

 
8. Continue to listen for and 

follow the directions given by 

the Principal’s Office (PA, 

written verbal, etc.). 
 

9. Do not allow anyone to leave the 

shelter until the all-clear signal is 

given. 
 

Teacher/School Staff Incident Commander 

SHELTER-IN-PLACE 



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  76 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

4.13 Lockdown 

 

Lockdown  

Lockdown procedures are used to protect building occupants from potential dangers in the building or 
external threats that may enter the building.  Lockdown is used in situations where an actual emergency 
or crisis that threatens the safety of building occupants is occurring, has occurred on a school campus or 
when the potential for such a situation is high.  Regular classroom activities are halted, and teachers 
should identify and move students quietly to a pre-designated safe zone in the classroom where they 
cannot be seen through any corridor windows.  Lockdown is a classroom-based protocol that requires 
locking the classroom door, turning off the lights, silencing cell phones and placing students out of sight 
of any windows. 

During a lockdown, law enforcement will enter the school with the mission of stopping the threat.  As 
more officers are deployed, there may be a need to evacuate individual classrooms or areas under escort.  
In most cases, students and staff will be asked to evacuate in a single file with hands empty and showing. 
Instructions from law enforcement will likely include these directives: do not take personal belongings 
with you; do not talk or use electronic devices and follow all instructions of law enforcement officers.  
Students may be escorted to buses or walked to an off-campus site.  All staff will remain with students 
until the emergency is over.

 

1. Instruct staff to Lockdown by a pre- 

designated signal (verbal, through the 

use of intercom, radio, e-mail, etc.) 

that requires all persons outside to go 

indoors. 
 

2. Call: 9-1-1, or emergency services. 
 

3. Make sure persons with special needs 

are given assistance in getting to the 

secured area. 
 

4. Ensure that all doors/windows are 

locked. 
 

5. Notify Principal/Governing Board Chair. 
 

6. Make sure that everyone stays in 

the secured area. 
 

7. Maintain communication with 

emergency response personnel to 

receive periodic updates. 
 

8. Communicate the all-clear signal, once 

police and fire departments deem 

appropriate. 

1. Make sure that all students go 

inside to the nearest secured area. 
 

2. Close and lock all windows and 

doors to the secured area. 
 

3. Account for all students; keep 

track of and report all missing 

students to the office. 
 

4. Continue to listen for and follow 

the directions given by the Incident 

Commander’s communication (PA, 

written verbal communication, e-

mail, radio, etc.). 
 

5. Do not allow anyone to enter/exit 

the secured area until the proper 

signal or response is given. 
 

6. In the event of any audible alarm 

occurring during a lockdown, all 

students/staff will remain in place. If 

evacuation alarms sounds, manually 

check and re-secure any unlocked 

doors or windows. 
 

7. Do not allow anyone to leave the 

secured area until the all-clear 

signal is given. 

LOCKDOWN 

Teacher/School Staff Incident Commander 



 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  77 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

4.14 Active Shooter 
 

Active Shooter 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy recognizes the need to protect all students from any potential harm.  It 

also recognizes that the response in the situation of an active shooter will require the staff to take actions 

to protect the students by, evacuating the building if possible, going into a lockdown, sheltering students 

in the safest location possible, or fighting the shooter with all means possible. 

In addition to the training received by school administrators in their continuing education, Albuquerque 

Aviation Academy has required all key staff to complete an active shooter training with local police 

authorities.  The school, through Albuquerque Police Department or New Mexico State Police conducts 

Active Shooter training once a year during the first weeks teachers and staff return to work for the school 

year.  Certificates of completion are on file in the school administration office.  In addition to the 

participation of the Albuquerque Police Department, this training includes participation from the 

Bernalillo County Office of Emergency Management.   

Any person found on the school campus that is not a current student, staff member, or identified as a 

visitor is considered to be a trespasser.  A trespasser who refuses to stop when challenged becomes an 

intruder.  This will activate the active shooter/intruder protocol.  Any school staff is authorized and 

required to call for a lockdown at the first notice of an emergency. 

Active Shooter/Intruder Protocol: 

 Call 911 (Whoever first encounters the shooter or witness the shooter) 

 Information to provide to 911 operators 

 Location of the active shooter 

 Number of shooters 

 Physical description of shooters 

 Number and type of weapons shooter has 

 Number of potential victims at the location 

 Albuquerque Aviation Academy will go into Immediate Lockdown 

 Staff Call Front Office – Intruder/Identify Location 

 Office Staff:  Announce Intruder Over PA & Radio Intruder 

 Lockdown of All Facilities 

  Call 911 (redundancy to ensure 911 call is made) 

 Administration:  Secure Students/Staff 

 Building administrator or his/her alternate will be the POC within the facility for emergency 
responders. 

The Albuquerque Aviation Academy has adopted the Run-Hide-Fight course of action for an active shooter 

situation.  The following procedures have been set in place for both an intruder and active shooter. 

Run, Hide, Fight: Survival Responses for an Active Shooter Situation  

While the lockdown protective action is often used during an active shooter situation, if you are alone or 

have no other alternative, you should be aware of the other options of evacuating yourself and students 



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  78 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

to safety or, as a very last resort, fighting to protect them and yourself.  Run, Hide, Fight are three tactics 

that have been recognized nationally as effective survival responses to active shooter situations in 

schools, universities, movie theatres, shopping malls and workplaces. 

What Run, Hide, Fight is not:  

 It is NOT a NM PED-mandated protocol for all schools and districts.  

 It does NOT advocate teaching children to fight.  

 It does NOT advocate teaching or requiring school staff or anyone else to fight.  

 It is NOT absolute.  Schools must decide how much, if any, of the protocol is appropriate for each 
individual school (which is dependent upon the age of the students, the willingness of staff and 
other unique circumstances, such as student and staff characteristics).  

 It is NOT the answer to all school gun incidents.  

 It is NOT in conflict with the lockdown protocol.  

What Run, Hide, Fight is:  

 It IS a starting point for discussions.  

 It IS designed to engage civilians in survival efforts.  

 It IS designed to help inform civilians of potential law enforcement response protocols during 
active shooter situations.  

 It DOES acknowledge the reality of what is occurring.  

 It IS a way to practice for the “unlikely but possible”—just as schools do for a fire.  

Run  

Typically, students and staff should only deviate from the practiced lockdown procedure when instructed 

by law enforcement officers or other first responders that it is safe to do so.  However, in an extreme case 

when there is no other option and the threat is imminent and unavoidable, the situation may dictate that 

school personnel and students “run.”  If this is an option, and if it is safe to do so, evacuate the premises 

(informing students which route to take and where they should go), and move well away from the school 

to a safe location.  

School personnel should take the following actions:  

 Have an escape route and plan in mind before moving.  Ideally, this plan should be drilled ahead 
of time.  

 Account for all students.  Have a staff member or another responsible individual lead the students 
out, while checking for the last student out of the room or area.  

 Leave all belongings behind and instruct students to do the same.  

 Break windows to escape if located on the ground floor.  Clear away glass and lay mats or clothing 
over the windowsill to prevent injury.  An adult should climb out first to help students exit the 
window safely.  

 Call 911 when conditions are safe to do so.  

 Prevent individuals from entering an area where an active shooter may present a threat.  Warn 
people to stay away without endangering yourself or others.  

 Keep hands up, empty, and visible if law enforcement is outside.  

 Follow the instructions of all law enforcement.  

 Listen for special instructions over the intercom or other designated means of communication. 



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  79 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

Hide  

“Hide” is essentially an extreme version of a routine lockdown procedure and the recommended action 

to take in a “no warning” incident, versus a lockdown that is announced over an intercom.  If 

evacuating/running is not possible, school personnel and students should find a place to hide where the 

active shooter is less likely to find the hiding location.  Whether school personnel and students are in the 

school building or on the sports field or a field trip, the hiding places should:  

 Be out of the active shooter’s view. 

 Provide protection if shots are fired in the direction of the hiding spot. 

 Be away from doors and windows as bullets can easily pass through these. 

 Not trap or restrict options for escape, so that if running becomes possible, it is still an option. 

To decrease the likelihood of an active shooter entering the hiding place:  

 Lock the door. 

 Blockade the door with heavy furniture. 

 Hide behind solid objects such as file cabinets for protective cover.  

If the active shooter is nearby, take the following actions:  

 Lock the door and shut off the lights. 

 Silence cell phones or pagers. 

 Turn off any source of noise, such as radios and televisions. 

 Hide behind large items such as cabinets and desks. 

 Remain quiet and instruct others to do the same.  

When reporting the threat to the police take the following steps:  

 Remain calm. 

 Call 911, if possible, to alert police to the active shooter’s location.  If speaking on the phone is 
not an option, leave the line open and allow dispatch to listen to what is happening.  

Fight  

As a very last resort, and only when your life or the lives of those around you are in imminent danger, 
you may decide to attempt to disrupt or incapacitate the active shooter by attacking or by using a 
distraction.  

Some options may include:  

 Throwing items and improvising weapons such as a chair, phone, laptop, tablet, stapler, file, book, 
or another easily accessible object. 

 Yelling or shouting to distract or frighten the aggressor. 

 Seeking control of the aggressor’s hands to limit his/her ability to use a weapon. 

 Directing students to escape while you are attacking or distracting the active shooter. 

Interacting with Law Enforcement or Other First Responders  

When an emergency is such that law enforcement or other first responders arrive on-scene, particularly 

in an active shooter situation, it is important to respond in a manner that does not present a risk to 

yourself or the students.  Law enforcement will proceed to the area where the last shots were heard to 



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  80 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

stop the shooter.  Teachers or others with student responsibility should brief students, especially if they 

are older, on what to do when the police arrive.  

In such incidents, it is important to:  

 Remain calm and follow the officers’ instructions. 

 Avoid startling the officers or taking actions that might be misinterpreted as being hostile. 

 Put down any items in your hands, instructing students to do the same. 

 Immediately raise hands and spread fingers, instructing students to do the same. 

 Always keep hands visible, as the police may not know who the active shooter is. 

 Avoid making quick movements toward officers and do not attempt to hold onto them for safety. 

 Avoid pointing, screaming, or yelling. 

 Avoid stopping and asking law enforcement for help or directions when evacuating.  

Students and staff will be evacuated as they are released by law enforcement.  Those evacuated will be 
directed to a safe location to await further instruction and may be transported by bus to a location 
where they can be reunited with family. 

The primary off-campus evacuation site that has been identified for Albuquerque Aviation Academy is 
CNM Westside located at 10549 Universe Blvd NW, Albuquerque, NM 87114.  CNM Westside is a fifteen 
minute walk or a two minute drive from Albuquerque Aviation Academy.  The contact number for staff to 
ensure the facility is ready to accept students is (505) 224-3000.   
 
See section 6.1 of this plan for protocols on re-location and reunification.  

In the case of an act of violence occurring, there will most likely be an attempt by the media to access 

the school site or students and staff.  All media inquiries need to be directed to the PIO.  See section 

5.22 for the complete media relations protocol. 

 

4.15 Closing of School/Early Dismissal 
 

The closing of a school or early dismissal may occur due to an emergency status, such as severe weather 
conditions, power outages, etc.  
If an unscheduled early dismissal occurs, these steps should be followed: 

● Designated staff will go on duty in front of the school immediately. 
● Support staff will assist the traffic in front of the building.  Teachers remain with their classes. 
● Support staff will assist in the office, answering the phones, delivering messages, and monitoring 

bus arrivals. 
● Albuquerque Aviation Academy will generate a robo-call or implement the school phone tree to 

parents/guardians and inform them of the school closure.  They will also contact the local radio 
stations and put out alerts on the school social media sites. 

● Each teacher remains with his/her students until all students are picked up. 
● Students remain in the classroom until notified of their pick-up vehicle or that their parent is there 

to pick them up. 



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  81 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

● After all, pick-up vehicles have departed; all remaining students will be taken to the front office 
or cafeteria, depending on how many students have not been picked up.  The Head Administrator 
or designee will be responsible until all students have been picked up. 

 

4.16 Act of Violence  

 Active Shooter(s): a person who is actively engaging students and/or staff with a firearm. 

 Armed Person on School Ground: an individual displaying or wielding a deadly weapon. 

 Drive-by Shooter: a person is shooting from an occupied/moving vehicle into a target area. 

 Hostage Situation: detaining students and/or staff against their will by force or threatened use of 
force. 

 Shots Fired from On/Off-School Grounds: gunfire coming from an undetermined source. 

 Show-by Shooter: the individual is driving by with the intent of a show of force, i.e., showing a 
gun out of the car window, but not firing it. 

 Suicide/Threat of Suicide: The act of taking one’s own life or threatening to do so. 
 
It is possible that a shooting could occur at or near a school site.  The immediate concern is the safety of 
staff and all students.  The locations at greater risk may be the fields utilized by physical education classes, 
playgrounds, the perimeter of the school, and the entrance areas, due to accessibility by vehicles. 
Immediately after an incident occurs/reported shots fired: 
Initiate LOCKDOWN procedures campus wide. 

Additional Instructions: 

 If outside, find cover (may need to lie flat). 

 Have students move safely and quickly to the nearest shelter (building) or cover. 

 Assess injuries, if applicable. 

 Do not allow a seriously injured person(s) to move.  If injured are ambulatory, assist them to 
shelter. 

 Stay with the injured person(s) until emergency services arrive. 

 Provide the police with as much detail as possible. 

 Remember: Students will model their emotional reaction after yours, so STAY CALM. 



 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  82 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

4.17 Animal on Campus 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy is located off a major roadway on the west side of Albuquerque near new 
developments, where there is a possibility of encountering coyotes, roadrunners, skunks, gophers, 
squirrels, snakes, and stray cats or dogs wandering on to the campus.   

In the case of an animal on campus staff will: 

 If the animal is outside, bring all students inside and implement SHELTER-IN-PLACE. 

 If the animal is inside, implement EVACUATION procedures and lock the animal inside. 

 Notify 911, and they will dispatch services as needed to include animal control. 

 Notify the Head Administrator or Director of Operations.  Animal control may not respond to wild 
animals.  The Director of Operations /designee will contact the appropriate authority such as NM 
Game and Fish, USDA Fish and Wildlife, or the contracted pest control service.  

 If needed, notify the school health assistant or Head Administrator of any medical emergency. 

4.18 Bomb Threat 

Bomb threats may be received by phone, mail, verbally or by email.  All bomb threats must be taken 
seriously, reported, and investigated.  The following protocols should be observed depending upon the 
method used to make the threat.  All threats will be reported to the building administrator immediately.  
Depending upon the threat, a determination will be made to go into lockdown, evacuate, or continue 
operations.  

Receiving a Threat 

By Telephone 

 Remain Calm and DO NOT HANG UP 

 If possible, signal other staff members to listen and notify Incident Command Team and 
authorities. 

 If the phone has a display, copy the number and/or letters on the window display. 

 Write down the exact wording of the threat. 

 Keep the caller on for as long as possible and use the Bomb Threat Checklist to gather as much 
information as possible. 

 Record, if possible. 

 Fill out the Bomb Threat Checklist immediately. 

 Notify the Director of Operations, and law enforcement. 

 Be available for interviews with the School Incident Command Team and law enforcement. 

Verbal Threat 

 If the perpetrator leaves, note which direction they went 

 Notify the Director of Operations, and law enforcement 

 Write down the threat exactly as it was communicated 

 Note the description of the person who made the threat: 

 Name if known 

 Gender 

 Body size (height/weight) 

 Distinguishing features 

 Race 

 Type/color of clothing  



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  83 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 Hair and eye color  

 Voice (loud, deep, accent, etc.) 

Written Threat 

 Handle the document as little as possible 

 Notify the Director of Operations, and law enforcement  

 On another sheet of paper note the following: 

 Date/time/location document was found 

 Any situations or conditions surrounding the discovery/delivery 

 Full names of any personnel who saw the threat 

 Secure the original threat; DO NOT alter the item in any way 

 If large/stationary, secure the location 

E-mailed or Social Media Threat  

 Leave the message open on the computer 

 Notify the Director of Operations, and law enforcement 

 Print, photograph, screenshot, or copy the message and subject line; note the date and time 

Threat Assessment 

All threats will be carefully evaluated, and all facts as well as the context of the threat will be examined to 
determine if there is a credible threat.  

Response to the Threat 

Director of Operations /Designee: 
● Immediately contact local law enforcement if not done. 
● Mobilize the Building Incident Command Team. 
● Communicate with personnel about bomb threat condition. 
● Limit access to the building. 
● Evaluate the authenticity of threat. 
● Decide on appropriate action or combination of actions: 

● LOCKDOWN: partial or full 
● EVACUATION: partial or full 
● Search: partial or full 

If LOCKDOWN is Initiated: 

 The school will go into LOCKDOWN and follow the procedures and protocol listed in Section 5.2 
of this plan. 

If EVACUATION is Initiated: 

 The school will go into EVACUATION procedures, evacuating to the CNM Westside Campus 
located a short distance down Universe Blvd following the protocols listed in Section 5.2 of this 
plan.  The address of the evacuation site is: 

 10549 Universe Blvd NW, Albuquerque, NM 87114.   

 The contact number for staff to ensure the facility is ready to accept students is 505-224-3000.



 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  84 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

If Search Is Initiated by the Director of Operations: 

● Assemble and deploy the Incident Command Team. 
● Search the entire building and grounds. 
● Account for all personnel. 
● General search guidelines include: 

● Start on the outside of the building and work inward. 
● When inside, start at the bottom and work upward. 
● Search personnel should always work towards one another. 
● Listen for background noises. 
● Clear evacuation routes and assembly areas. 
● If a suspicious item is located, leave indicators for emergency services. 

Personnel: 

 If the Director of Operations initiates a search, make a quick and complete visual scan of the 
workplace and any other common areas assigned. 

 Divide room into various search levels. 

 First sweep all objects resting on the floor or built into walls, up to your waist. 

 Scan the room from waist to chin height. 

 Scan room from the top of head to the ceiling, including air ducts, window tops, and light fixtures. 

 If anything unusual is noticed, move people away from the potential hazard and immediately 
report the location of the object to the Director of Operations. 

Use of radio communications is NOT recommended unless the area has been cleared. 

If Suspicious Item Is Found DO NOT touch, tamper with, or move the item 

Immediately report item to Director of Operations /designee and local law enforcement/first responders 
The Director of Operations /designee must: 

 Ensure area is secured and cleared of personnel. 

 Notify Incident Command Team. 

 Ensure emergency responders are briefed. 

 Execute EVACUATION and the Incident Command Team should remain available to assist and 
inform evacuees, media, staff, and others 

NOTE: The discovery of one device should not automatically mean the conclusion of a search.  More 
devices may be present! 

 No bomb threat is to be disregarded as being a prank call.  

 Staff members should never attempt to touch, move, dismantle, or carry any object that is 
suspected of being dangerous or explosive.   

 Albuquerque Aviation Academy will conduct bomb threat drills at the discretion of the Director 
of Operations.  These drills will often be incorporated with an evacuation drill. 

 Evacuations will follow the protocol listed in section 5.2 of this plan. 



 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  85 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

 

  



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  86 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

4.19 Civil Disturbance 

Civil Disturbance is a disruption in the educational process due to; unreasonable behavior, mass 
disobedience, or other inappropriate behaviors or actions stemming from a group of individuals that 
threatens the stability and operation of the school and/or the safety of the students/staff.  This may 
include sit-ins, walk-outs, protests, etc. 

Coming from within school: LOCKDOWN as per the protocol outlined in section 5.2 of this plan. 

A disturbance outside school property: SHELTER IN PLACE or LOCKDOWN, depending on the situation.  

4.20 Cyber Security Breach 

In the case of a cybersecurity breach being detected at Albuquerque Aviation Academy, all students will 

immediately stop using the network.  This will include LAN and wireless connected devices.   

● Immediate Actions to be taken by School Staff in the Event of a Cyber Security Breach  

● Notify the school or IT Contractor immediately.  
● The school may call 911, if the incident warrants.  
● Inform staff that a breach has occurred and direct them to take specific actions to counter 

the breach.  
● Follow any additional school cyber security policies.  
● Document the incident by taking detailed notes and pass the documentation along to the 

Director of Operations, IT Contractor, and law enforcement.  
Cyber Security Reporting  

A local, state, and national system is in place to report cyber security incidents.  Utilization of this reporting 
process is encouraged.  The U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS) has a mission to protect the 
nation’s cyber security and has organizations dedicated to collecting and reporting on cyber incidents, 
phishing, malware, and other vulnerabilities.  

To report an incident or learn more about cyber security, contact your local law enforcement agency, or 
DHS at cert@cert.org and soc@us-cert.gov.  The United States Computer Emergency Readiness Team (US-
CERT) Incident Reporting System provides a secure, web-enabled means of reporting computer security 
incidents to US-CERT.  This system assists analysts in providing timely handling of cyber security incidents, 
as well as the ability to conduct improved analysis. 

4.21 Explosion 

All explosions, whether internal (at the school), external (near the school), accidental or intentional, pose 
a danger to both the school population and the facilities/structures.  As with any emergency, staff should 
stay calm as a model to their students of appropriate emotional response.  The response actions for an 
explosion at or near Albuquerque Aviation Academy are: 

If the threat of a blast or an actual blast is near the school: 

● Implement SHELTER-IN-PLACE 
● Move students and staff to Interior hallways away from windows. 
● Close all doors leading into hallways to minimize flying glass and other debris. 
● All people must assume the duck, cover, and hold a position on the ground. 
● Shut down all utility systems to the building (gas and electricity are the priorities and will most 

likely be taken care of by first responders). 
● Keep students and staff inside buildings. 

mailto:soc@us-cert.gov


 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  87 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

When clear to do such, notify parents of students as to the status, including instructions on 
how/where/when to pick up children if they are evacuated. 

Permit parents to pick up their children only after cleared to do so by public safety authorities. 

If the school is the target of the blast: 

Implement EVACUATION protocol and evacuate to CNM Westside Campus located a short distance down 
Universe Blvd.  The address of the evacuation site is: 

  10549 Universe Blvd NW, Albuquerque, NM 87114.   

 The contact number for staff to ensure the facility is ready to accept students is (505) 224-3000. 

Reunification procedures will be followed for the release of students to parents/guardians as outlined in 
Section 6.1 of this plan. 

4.22 Fallen Aircraft 

A fallen aircraft includes plane, hang glider, hot air balloon, helicopter, etc. that have fallen out of the sky 
and has crashed on or near school property.  All types of aircraft that use gas to power a motor or engine 
have a high risk of fire or explosion after a crash. 

In the event of a fallen aircraft, teachers/administrators should instruct students to implement SHELTER-
IN-PLACE procedures as outlined in section 5.2 of this plan. 

If a building is involved in a crash, all students/staff shall be EVACUATED in accordance with Section 5.2 
of this plan.   

Additional Instructions: 

● Do not attempt to assist at the crash site.  The primary responsibility is for the safety of staff and 
students.  

4.23 Fire 

School fires are often more dangerous than they appear.  Panic greatly complicates evacuation.  Most 
school fires are set by vandals.  Never assume that the fire has a single source or is minor.  Cafeterias, 
laboratories, shops, storage rooms, and toilets are common areas for fires.  To prepare, have your staff 
familiarize themselves with the locations and operation of fire extinguishers, fire pull stations, and hoses. 

If a fire or smoke from a fire has been detected: 

● Activate fire alarm, if not already activated. 
● EVACUATE students and staff to a safe distance outside of the building, away from any potential 

exterior fire sites or dangers. 

If necessary, EVACUATION procedures will be implemented, and students will be escorted by staff to the 
CNM Westside Campus located about one mile from the school.   

● The address of the evacuation site is 10549 Universe Blvd NW, Albuquerque, NM 87114.   

● The contact number for staff to ensure the facility is ready to accept students is (505) 224-3000. 

Staff will await further guidance from the IC for either returning to the school or reunification 

procedures to be implemented.  



 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  88 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

If an off-site EVACUATION is required: 

● Follow normal fire drill route; follow an alternate route if the normal route is dangerous. 
● Teachers take class rosters. 
● IC notifies law enforcement (call 911). 
● Teachers take roll after safely reaching the evacuation site. 
● Do not attempt to extinguish the fire if it will put anyone in danger. 
● No one should re-enter building(s) until entire building is declared safe by fire or law enforcement 

personnel. 
● IC notifies students and staff of termination of emergency. 
● The Head of School will notify parents that the school has evacuated, instructing them not to 

come to the school (see Chapter 5.21 for more information on Notification and Messaging). 
● Resume normal operations only after verifying with law enforcement that the danger to the 

school is no longer present. 
● If there is a fire external to the school (e.g., forest fire, brush fire), an evaluation will need to be 

made in consultation with fire officials.  Fire and/or law enforcement officials should be consulted 
prior to evacuation, or another response action being taken. 

4.24 HAZMAT 

A hazardous material is any chemical compound or biological agent that has adverse effects on health and 
safety.  This includes natural gases, propane, and like gases.  A hazardous material release is a release of 
a chemical compound or biological agent that requires initiation of emergency protocol. 

All containers must be labeled as to their contents.  No hazardous materials should be brought onto school 
property without prior authorization from the Head Administrator, and the Material Safety Data Sheet 
(MSDS) for the chemical should be forwarded to the school office. 

Proper chemical hazard signs should be displayed on the outside of buildings that contain chemicals.  If 
for example the boiler malfunctions, or if a line leaks, there may be an irritating ammonia odor.  Call 
Maintenance and Operations and evacuate away from the area.  Open windows if necessary. 

INTERIOR hazardous material release:  EVACUATE all students and staff. 

EXTERIOR hazardous material release: may need to SHELTER-IN-PLACE or LOCKDOWN. 

Additional Instructions: 
● Notify the Director of Operations /designee of hazardous material release.  Incident Commander 

will determine the appropriate course of action; responders will take appropriate action (shelter-
in-place, lockdown, or evacuation). 

● Do not clean up or touch any chemical spill. 
● In the event of inclement weather, students should be moved to an unaffected building or off-

site location.



 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  89 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

4.25 Loss of Power or Water 

If loss of power or water cannot be immediately restored and may negatively impact students, the school 
may need to be dismissed. 

Additional Instructions: 

● The Director of Operations will assess the situation and determine an estimate of when the 
utilities will be restored.  The decision to close school or to change hours of the school day is the 
responsibility of the Head of School with the advice of the Director of Operations. 

● If the situation occurs after hours, a local utility company may need to be called at if maintenance 
staff or the Director of Operations is not available. If a utility company cannot be reached, contact 
local law enforcement. 

● Albuquerque Bernalillo County Water Authority - (505) 842-9287 
● PNM – (888) 342-5766 
● NM Gas Co. – (505) 726-6249 

The school should provide flashlights, replacement batteries for classrooms and workplaces.  School multi-
purpose rooms, main offices, and special services areas should have emergency lighting that is 
automatically activated during a power failure. 

4.26 Medical Emergency 

During a medical emergency, staff should remain calm and assess the situation, first making sure that it is 
safe to approach.  The following dangers will require extra caution: live electrical wires, gas leaks, chemical 
spills, building damage, fire, smoke, traffic, or violence.  General guidelines for responding to a medical 
emergency in schools include, but are not limited to the following: 

● Call 911 for transportation of an ill or injured student or staff, if necessary. 
● A responsible adult should stay with the injured/seriously ill student until emergency responders 

arrive. 
● Send word to the person designated to handle medical emergencies (Director of Operations, Head 

Administrator, or health assistant).  This person will take charge of the emergency and provide 
instructions and first aid, as needed. 

● Do NOT give medications unless there has been prior approval by the parent/guardian and 
according to an individualized emergency action or healthcare plan. 

● Do NOT move a severely injured or ill student unless absolutely necessary for immediate safety. 
● Notify the parent/guardian as soon as possible to determine the appropriate course of action. 
● Any students not a part of the medical emergency need to be moved from the area.  This may 

require the school to go into a SHELTER-IN-PLACE until the scene has been cleared. 
● If the parent/guardian cannot be reached, notify a parent/guardian substitute, and call either the 

physician or the hospital, designated on the Emergency Information Card, so that they will 
anticipate the arrival of the injured/ill student. 

● If the parent/guardian cannot be reached and the student needs to be transported by 
ambulance, a school staff member must accompany the student.  



 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  90 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

Emergency Phone Numbers -(This sheet will be posted in each room) 

EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER(S):  

 911 – FOR ALL EMERGENCIES 

 (505) 242-2677 - Albuquerque Police Department 

 (505) 314-0012 – Bernalillo County Sheriff – South Area Command 

 (505) 833-7300 – Albuquerque Fire and Rescue 

Name of Emergency Medical Service: 

 

Presbyterian Rust Medical Center 
2400 Unser Blvd SE 
Rio Rancho, NM 87124 
(505) 253-7878 

 
Lovelace Westside Hospital 
10501 Golf Course Rd NW 

Albuquerque, NM 87114 

505.727.2000

Average emergency response time to your building/facility:  3-5 minutes 

Cross streets for your building/facility:  Irving Blvd NW and Ventana Rd NW 

Be prepared to provide the following information when you dial 911 and stay on the line until the 
answering party terminates the call: 

● Your name and phone number:  (505) 608-6441 or your cell number 
● School/facility name, phone number, and address:  

 SAMS Academy (aka Albuquerque Aviation Academy) 
6441 Ventana Road NW 
Albuquerque, 87114 
Phone#: (505) 608-6641 

● Address and easy directions, including best entrance to use. 
● The exact location of the injured person (e.g., behind the gym parking lot). 
● Type of injury/condition suspected (e.g., head or neck injury, shock, etc.). 
● Help already given to victim (e.g., epinephrine, CPR, AED, etc.). 
● Ways to find the entrance easily (someone standing out front, a flagpole, etc.). 

Other Important Phone Numbers: 
● School Social Worker/health assistant:  (505) 280-0193 
● Responsible administrator: (505) 715-3420 
● Poison control: 1-800-222-1222 
● Emergency/disease reporting: 1-800-232-4636 
● Fire Department: 911 or (505) 833-7300 
● Police 911 or (505) 242-2677 
● Hospital or closest medical facility: UNM Sandoval Hospital – (505) 994-7000 
● CYFD Local:  (505) 841-4801 
● Local health agency:  (505) 222-6500 
● Child abuse hotline:  1-855-333-7233 
● Sexual assault hotline:  1-800-656-4673 
● Domestic violence hotline: 1-800-799-7233 
● Suicide and Crisis Lifeline: 988 

https://www.google.com/search?client=firefox-b-1-d&q=sams+academy


 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  91 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

4.27 Missing Child 

The AMBER Alert™ program is a voluntary partnership between law-enforcement agencies, broadcasters, 
transportation agencies, and the wireless industry, to activate an urgent bulletin in the most serious child-
abduction cases.  The goal of an AMBER Alert™ is to instantly galvanize the entire community to assist in 
the search for and the safe recovery of the child.   

There are certain situations where it is of utmost concern to keep track of all students, including off-site 
field trips.  Ensure that field trip sponsors have correct attendance lists and emergency contact 
information. 

Attendance must be taken at key intervals throughout the day to ensure that all students are accounted 
for.  These times include before the transportation leaves, when the transportation arrives on site, after 
entering the site, and after boarding transportation at the end of the trip. 

As soon as it is determined that a student is missing: 
● Notify local law enforcement (call 911). 
● Contact parent/guardian to inform them of the situation. 
● Contact school administrator if they have not yet been contacted.  They will contact the 

appropriate personnel. 
● Provide responding law enforcement with the following: 

 Student enrollment form (this form normally contains a photo and address of the 
student). 

 Any reasons for concerns about the student’s whereabouts. 

 Last known time and place student was seen. 

 Names of any students or others who may have been with the student. 

 Any other information that may be relevant to helping locate the student. 

Once a student is reported missing, law enforcement will determine if and when an AMBER Alert will 
be activated. 

 

4.28 Natural Hazards/Severe Weather 

Natural Hazards and severe weather can include fire, hail, tornado, earthquake, lightning, snow, ice storm, 
wind, sandstorm, heavy rain, and flooding.   

In the event of a natural hazard, there is often no time to assess the event.  In this situation follow the 
procedure for SHELTER-IN-PLACE.  There may be certain situations where an EVACUATION is the best 
response to prevent students and staff from being stranded on school grounds or placed in greater 
danger. 

Students should not be released if it is hazardous to do so.



 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  92 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

Additional Instructions: 

Earthquake 

Inside Building: 
● All pupils and staff should immediately turn away from glass areas and take a secure practiced 

position.   
● If structural damage, window breakage, etc., has been sustained, the teacher is to follow normal 

evacuation drill procedures following termination of the quake. 
● All science classroom gas burners must be extinguished. 
● Everyone should stay clear of chemicals. 

Outside Building 
● Move to an open area away from trees, portable backstops, power lines, buildings, etc. 
● Remain in a cleared area, free from any potential falling objects. 
● Under no circumstances should students or adults attempt to return to the building during an 

earthquake. 

Wildfire  

Unfortunately, the possibility of wildfires in New Mexico is quite high, due to combination of fuel, terrain, 
and weather.  Droughts and dry conditions throughout various times of the year increase the risk for 
wildfires, which can quickly spread across trees and dry brush and threaten homes, schools and businesses 
that are in the vicinity.  Wildfires often begin unnoticed, however, they spread quickly and every second 
counts!  Because many communities and schools in New Mexico are particularly vulnerable to wildfire, 
having a wildfire protection and response plan is very important.  Basic wildfire protection and response 
actions for schools include:  

Protection:  
● Work with local fire officials and emergency responders to make a wildfire emergency plan for 

your school.  
● Mitigate fire damage to your school by clearing wood and other accelerants from the campus.  
● Keep important school records in a safe, fireproof, and waterproof place.  
● Back up electronic records securely off-site.  

Response:  
● During a wildfire, follow the directions of local emergency response officials.  
● Monitor public alert radio, tuned to NOAA Weather Radio All Hazards, a nationwide network of 

radio stations broadcasting all-hazards information 24-7.  
● Follow marked evacuation routes if instructed to evacuate.  

Flood/Snowfall 

Heavy snowfall is a reasonable expectation from time to time in Albuquerque, NM.  Heavy snowfall may 
affect school operations and transportation; if this occurs the school will: 

● Based on weather reports, implement early dismissal procedures to get students home safely. 
● Students will not be released from school if it is hazardous to do so. 
● It is important that evacuations will not take place through deep snow or flowing water. 
● Implement a remote or other educational plan if prolonged winter weather causes the school to 

close for an extended period. 



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  93 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

4.29 Special Events 

On Campus: 

Special events, such as sporting events, graduations, dances, memorials, etc., are likely to occur on a 
school campus.  In addition, students and school staff may travel to off-site locations for school-
sanctioned events.  Below are actions taken for special events emergency planning:  

● Announce evacuation routes/exits before event begins. 

● Announce emergency or other reporting phone numbers to report problems or illegal activity at 
the venue.  

● Work with local police and fire for traffic control and to determine fire code regulations.  

Off Campus: 

● Become familiar with emergency evacuation routes at the facility/area you are visiting.  

● Pre-identity a nearby facility where students can be taken in the event of an evacuation.  

● Pre-identify alternative methods of transportation if vehicles/buses used to arrive are not 
available to return from an event.  

● A chaperone will be provided a first aid bag with basic first aid items.  

● Students who require medication during school hours will have to make arrangements to have 
the required dose of medication sent along and be administered by approved personnel.   

4.30 Transportation Emergency  

Transportation emergencies may include bus accident, vehicle accident with students or teachers, 
pedestrian hit by vehicle, vehicle crash into campus property, etc.  These following protocols are in place 
to address transportation emergencies, including: 

● Vehicle trouble/crash requiring evacuation.  Exit vehicle and stand at a distance from accident if 
it is dangerous.  Call 911 and wait for emergency help.  Call the IC to inform of the incident - 
parents will be called and informed of accident and where to pick up their child.  IC will make 
other decisions on a case by case basis. 

● Vehicle trouble/crash not requiring evacuation.  Call 911 and wait for emergency help.  Call IC to 
inform of the incident - parents will be called and informed of accident and where to pick up their 
child.  IC will make other decisions on a case by case basis. 

● Passenger trouble requiring transportation - personnel intervention. Call 911 if emergency help is 
needed.  Call IC to inform of incident and for facilitation on case by case basis. 

● Passenger trouble requiring police intervention. Call 911 immediately and wait for help.  Call IC to 
report incident. 

● Passenger trouble requiring medical intervention.  Call 911 and wait for emergency services.  If 
able call IC to report incident. 

Response actions for transportation emergencies on the bus include the following: 

Bus Driver/Monitor 

● Ensure the safety of students and staff first. 
● Call 911, if necessary. 
● Notify the Head Administrator to determine needs for non-emergency situations.   
● The Head Administrator will notify the IC, who may assemble the Crisis Team, if necessary. 



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  94 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

The following responses will be implemented for transportation emergencies that occur within the vicinity 
of the school: 

● Notify CPR/first aid-certified personnel in school building of medical emergencies. 
● The Head Administrator notifies the governing board president and parents of students involved. 
● Assess counseling needs of victims or witnesses.   
● Implement post-crisis procedures (see Chapter 6.3 on Postvention for more information). 
● Track location(s) where the injured are taken. 

4.31 Notification and Messaging 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy will follow the Governance Council policy on the notification of parents 
regarding a school emergency such school closure, early release, lockdown, shelter-in-place, evacuation, 
or any other emergency.  

Student Notification: 

● School staff need to inform students in a timely manner, what is occurring or in the case of an off-
campus event- what has happened. 

Staff Notification: 

● It is important to inform staff prior to sharing information with students so that they can be 
prepared to answer questions. 

Parent/Guardian Notification: 

● Parents need to be notified as soon as possible of an event happening on campus (or school-
sanctioned event).  In addition, a letter will need to be sent home as follow up. 

It is important to notify parents in advance of possible campus emergencies during school hours.  While 
it is not necessary to detail every possible emergency, it is important for parents to be aware of the 
responses the school may take.  These include Lock- Down, Shelter-in-Place, and Evacuation. 

In addition to advance notification, it is important to let parents know when an emergency situation has 
occurred and the school’s response to that emergency.  

The Parent Notification System includes notifying the local Albuquerque radio stations through their 
corporate offices; and television stations KOB 4, KOAT 7, and KRQE 13. They will make announcements 
via radio and cable television and be provided updates to pass on.  

See Section 6.1 for additional information relating to Re-location and Reunification. 

 

Sample Parent/Guardian Letter on Emergency Procedures 

A copy of the following letter is sent out to parents using the district’s email system, by mail and is 

included in registration packets distributed the first week of school:



 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  95 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

Dear Parent(s)/Guardian(s): 

Should an emergency or disaster situation ever arise in our area while school is in session, we want you to be aware that the 
school is prepared to respond effectively.  In fact, public schools in New Mexico are built to meet stringent construction standards 
and may even be safer than many homes in the event of a disaster. 

Should we have a major disaster/emergency during school hours, your student(s) will be cared for at the school.  Our school has 
a detailed crisis plan, which has been formulated to respond to major emergencies. 

Parent/guardian cooperation is imperative during an emergency.  Please adhere to the following instructions in case of 
emergency: 

1.  Please do not telephone the school.  Telephone lines may be needed for emergency communication.  See #3 below for 
alternatives for communications. 

2.  In the event of a serious emergency, students will be kept at school until they are picked up by a responsible adult who has 
been pre-identified on the school emergency contact card, which is required to be filled out by parents/guardians at the beginning 
of every school year.  Please instruct your child to remain at school until you or a designee arrives.  It is recommended that you 
consider the following criteria when you authorize another person to pick up your child at school: 

 He/she is 18 years of age or older. 

 He/she is usually home during the day. 

 He/she could walk to school, if necessary. 

 He/she is known to your child. 

 He/she is both aware of and able to assume this responsibility. 

3.  Turn your radio to KKOB or tune in to KOB TV4, KOAT TV7 or KRQE TV13 for emergency announcements.  If students are to be 
kept at school, radio stations will be notified.  If electrical service is not affected, information will be relayed via TV channels and 
the school website.   

4.  If you opted into our mass notification system, you will also be notified via phone as soon as possible during an emergency.  It 
is important that we have your correct phone number and email address so that you will receive these messages.  Please do not 
call the school or your child’s cell phone during an emergency, as phone lines will need to remain clear for emergency services. 

5.  Impress upon your children the need for them to follow the directions of any school personnel during an emergency. 

6.  During some emergencies, students may be taken to an off-campus relocation site.  If this occurs, the school’s relocation and 
family reunification plan will be activated, which means that students will be released from the relocation site only to custodial 
parents/guardians or persons identified on the school emergency card.  It is recommended that parents/guardians familiarize 
themselves with the school’s relocation and reunification plan, so that you have a better understanding of the protocols that may 
be utilized in this circumstance. 

The decision to keep students at school will be based upon, among other factors, whether streets in the area are open and/or 
safe for travel.  If an early release occurs, radio and TV stations will be notified, and the school website will post relevant 
information.  If a natural disaster takes place during the time that students are being transported, students will be kept on the 
bus and the driver will ask for assistance through radio contact with the school and district personnel.  Any child who is home 
waiting for the bus will not be picked up (if roads are impassable) and remain the responsibility of the parent/guardian.  In the 
event a natural disaster occurs in the afternoon, the driver will make every attempt to continue delivering the students to their 
homes.  Should road or weather conditions prevent the driver from delivering students to their homes, the students will be 
delivered to the school site.  Parents will then be notified accordingly with instructions on how and where to pick up your student. 

In case of a hazardous material release near the school, shelter-in-place procedures will be implemented to provide in-place 
protection from the outside elements.  All students and staff will clear the fields, report to their rooms and all efforts will be made 
to prevent outside air from entering classrooms during the emergency.  Preventative Lockdown (Shelter-in-Place) signs will be 
placed in classroom windows or hung outside classroom doors during a drill or emergency.  Students arriving at school during a 
shelter-in-place drill or event should report to the school office or to a previously designated area at the school, because 
classrooms will be inaccessible.  When the dangerous incident has subsided, or drill has ended, the all-clear signal will be given, 
and classrooms will again be accessible. 

Please discuss these matters with your children and immediate family members.  Planning ahead will help alleviate concern and 
confusion during emergencies. 

Sincerely, 

Amanda Catanzaro 
Director of Operations   



 

ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  96 Safety Plan 2023 - 2025 
 

 

4.32 Media Relations 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy has a good working relationship with our local news media and have 
partnered with them in the reporting of school sports and other activities.  Albuquerque Aviation Academy 
will continue to work with the news media in a time of crisis or other high-profile incident as outlined in 
these guidelines. 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy designated Public Information Officer (PIO) is Amanda Catanzaro, 
Director of Operations.  She can be contacted at (505) 715-3420. 

All media inquiries related to any crisis or incident involving Albuquerque Aviation Academy must be 
directed to the PIO.  This includes inquiries may be in person, by telephone, or by email.  

Staff must not make any statements and refer all questions to the PIO. 

CNM Westside Campus has been identified as the media assembly location and is the location where any 
news briefs will be given by the PIO, the Governing Council President, or their designee. 

Reporters may arrive at the site of the crisis and attempt to get access to students and get video or photo 
coverage.  All efforts will be made to keep students from having any interaction with media during any 
event.  All reporters must be referred to the PIO. 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy will partner with emergency responders to arrange for joint press 
conferences to disseminate information.  

The local media will be informed of this procedure for obtaining information related to any crisis or 
incident.  

All employees, students, and parents will be notified of this policy through the employee handbook, and 
the student and parent handbooks. 

The media is often the only line of communication to the parents in the time of a crisis, and it is essential 
that the most accurate information is relayed in a timely manner. 

During an emergency the following guidance will be followed: 

● The IC/Head Administrator or his/her designee is responsible for communicating factual 
information to the governing board. 

● The Director of Operations /PIO will prepare a written or oral statement to media. 
● Emphasize the safety of students and staff first. 
● Do not argue with media representatives. 
● Maintain a log of all telephone inquiries.  
● Develop and use a scripted statement to respond to inquiries. 
● Create a general media statement before an incident occurs; adapt the statement during a crisis, 

as necessary. 
● Briefly describe the school’s plan for responding to emergencies. 
● Respect the privacy of victim(s) and families of the victim(s).  Never release victim names to 

media. 
● Refrain from exaggerating or sensationalizing the crisis. 

 

Amanda Catanzaro, Director of Operations  School Office   (505) 715-3420 

School PIO Name                   Room #   Phone Number(s)



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  97 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

Section V: Recovery 
 

Presidential Policy Directive 8 (PPD-8) defines disaster recovery as having a set of policies and procedures 
in place that will enable the restoration or continuation of vital technology, infrastructure, and systems 
following a natural or human-induced disaster.  Recovery is having the core capabilities necessary to assist 
communities affected by an incident to recover effectively and can, simply, be defined as the restoration 
of or return to normalcy.  Recovery from a major school crisis, while often overlooked, is a vital component 
of the school emergency operations planning cycle and needs to be addressed before a crisis, not after.  
There are immediate actions that are part of the recovery process that requires a substantial amount of 
pre-planning, including student relocation and accountability, parent/guardian and media notification and 
family reunification.  However, continued healing also requires addressing the aftermath of the crisis, 
including how to handle long-term mental health needs and the ongoing process of recovery.  
Additionally, there can be other essential functions (e.g., fiscal, physical, academic) that should be 
addressed as part of the recovery process. 
 
 

Recovery Team Roster 
 
Make sure to update this roster every time there is a change in personnel that affects the membership of 
the Recovery Team. 

Organization Name & Title Phone Number & E-mail 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy  

Amanda Catanzaro, Director of 
Operations  

505-715-3420 
acatanzaro@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy 

Bridget Barrett, Head Administrator 505-440-8511 
bbarrett@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy 

Gregory Leonard, Special Ed Teacher 505-298-2746 
gleonard@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy 

Audra Hays, Social Worker  505-280-0193 
ahays@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy 

Carla Gonzales, Registrar/Office 
Manager  

505-659-6290 
cgonzales@samsacademy.com 

AFR Fire Marshall Tim Pope, Fire Inspector 505-164-6300,  
tpope@cabq.gov 

Albuquerque Police 
Department 

Pete Gelabert, NW Crime Prevention 
Specialist 

505-831-4705 
pgelabert@cabq.gov 

Updated on: 11/04/2022 

  

mailto:acatanzaro@samsacademy.com
mailto:bbarrett@samsacademy.com
mailto:gleonard@samsacademy.com
mailto:jherring@samsacademy.com
mailto:cgonzales@samsacademy.com
mailto:tpope@cabq.gov


 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  98 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

5.1 Relocation and Reunification 

Relocation 

Events may occur at a school that require parents/guardians to pick-up students in a formalized, 
controlled release.  The process of controlled release is called reunification, and may be warranted due 
to severe weather, a power outage, a HAZMAT release, or if another crisis occurs at or near the school.  
Because a controlled release is not a typical end-of-school-day event, a reunification may occur at a 
different location than the school.  A school’s reunification protocol establishes a process that makes 
events more predictable and less chaotic for all involved, which is critical following a school crisis when 
everyone can be more stressed than usual.  Uncertainty and anxiety can create chaos, which is likely to 
occur during an emergency.  By having a defined process, a school can help to alleviate much of that 
uncertainty and fear by presenting an organized and calm demeanor.  While first responders generally 
assume the primary IC at a school during a major crisis, the school is responsible for reunifying students 
with their parents/guardians. 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy reviews and practices relocation protocols with staff annually during 
the first weeks of school.  First Responders are invited by the school to observe and evaluate our 
Evacuation and Relocation/Reunification Plans and offer suggestions on improvement strategies.   

 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy students and staff may have to evacuate the school and be relocated to 

another site.   

This site is CNM Westside Campus.  The address of the evacuation site is 10549 Universe Blvd NW, 

Albuquerque, NM 87114.  The contact number for staff to ensure the facility is ready to accept students 

is (505) 224-3000.   

The secondary site to be used if the primary site is unavailable is the former Southwest Aeronautics, 
Mathematics and Science Academy building located at 4100 Aerospace Pkwy NW, Albuquerque, NM 
87120.   

If students need to be evacuated and relocated, depending on the circumstance, students may relocate 
by foot, or they may be transported by bus.  

In the event of evacuation/relocation from Albuquerque Aviation Academy: 

● The Head Administrator or designee will take the school go-kit that contains the required 
documentation to account for students and staff as well as the reunification of students to 
parents/guardians.  

● To ensure that student data is current, parents and guardians are required to verify 
student data cards in the fall at registration and to provide new data as changes are 
made during the year.  This is also included as a requirement in the student and parent 
handbook. 

● Teachers will take their classroom go-kit/binder that contains the class roster and other 
documents.  

● The Head Administrator/IC will direct teachers and students to the onsite building evacuation 
location or the offsite evacuation location. 

● Teachers and staff will travel with students to the relocation site and remain with students until 
released.  



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  99 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

● The Head Administrator/IC will notify the Governing Council President of the evacuation and 
relocation of students and to which location they are being relocated to. 

● The Head Administrator will initiate the parent notification procedures through notification of the 
local radio and TV stations and by use of the school’s mass notification system.  

● Teachers will account for all students prior to getting on the buses and will account for all students 
upon arrival to the relocation site.  

● No students will be allowed to leave the relocation site without reunification procedures being 
followed.  

 
Go Kits are prepared and located in the office and individual classrooms of the school.   
 

Administration Go-Kit Supplies Classroom Go-Kit Supplies 

 
Clipboard with: 

● List of students 
● List of students with special needs and 

description of needs (e.g., medical 
issues, prescription medicines, dietary 
needs), marked confidential 

● List of school personnel 
● Whistle and hat/vest for leadership 

identification 
● Battery-operated flashlight 
● Utility shut-off procedures 
● Directions to evacuation site; local 

map 
● Emergency phone numbers 
● Emergency communication 

device/radio 
● First aid kit with instructions 
● Student emergency contact cards 
● Reunification cards 

 
Clipboard with: 

● Class roster 
● List of students with special needs and 

description of needs (e.g., medical 
issues, prescription medicines, dietary 
needs), marked confidential 

● School emergency procedures 
● Whistle and hat/vest for teacher 

identification 
● Battery-operated flashlight 
● First aid kit with instructions 
● Cell phone or another 

communications device 
● Directions to evacuation site; local 

map 
● Student activities (e.g., playing cards, 

checkers, inflatable ball 
 

 
 

Notification 

 
It is important to notify parents in advance of possible campus emergencies during school hours.   While 
it is not necessary to detail every possible emergency, it is important for parents/guardians to be aware 
of the responses the school may take.  These include Lock-Down, Shelter-in-Place, and Evacuation. 

In addition to advance notification, it is important to let parents/guardians know when an emergency has 
occurred and the school response to that emergency.  When relocation becomes necessary for 
Albuquerque Aviation Academy, the Head Administrator will contact the board.  The Head Administrator 
will then coordinate the contacting of parents through the PIO.  

The Albuquerque Aviation Academy PIO will contact the local radio stations through their corporate 
offices and television stations KOB 4, KOAT 7, and KRQE 13, providing them with current information as 
well as when and where students will be reunited with parents/guardians.  



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  100 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

The Albuquerque Aviation Academy PIO will provide a written statement to inform parents/guardians of 
re-location and reunification sites that will be posted on social media, e.g., Face book, Twitter, Instagram, 
etc. 

The Albuquerque Aviation Academy PIO will coordinate the robocalling of parents/guardians. 

All notifications will discourage parents/guardians from going to Albuquerque Aviation Academy and will 
only direct them to the reunification site when the IC, school administrators, law enforcement, and 
emergency responders authorize the release of students.  

Parents/guardians will be reminded to bring proper identification to pick up students.   

The Head Administrator/designee will provide a letter for each parent/guardian regarding the incident 
and the school’s response. 

Accountability 

A major responsibility of teachers and staff during an emergency is that of accounting for all students. 
Teachers are responsible for the following: 

● Albuquerque Aviation Academy administration will have a binder of student rosters that can be 
used in emergencies.   

 This binder will be transported to the relocation site by the registrar/office manager. 

 This binder will also contain parent/guardian contact information as well as any medical 
or other concerns.   

 This information is updated annually at registration and more often if information 
changes.  The school sends registration packets home at the beginning of the year to 
ensure accurate information is on file.   

● Teachers must have a hard copy of their class roster with them when they evacuate the school 
● Teachers will take attendance of students before they leave the school or evacuation site for 

relocation. 
● Teachers will take attendance to ensure all students are on the bus prior to departure. 

● Teachers will take attendance upon reaching and settling into the relocation site. 

Reunification Team 

Organization Name & Title Phone Number & E-mail 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy 

Amanda Catanzaro, Director of 
Operations  

505-715-3420 
acatanzaro@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy 

Bridget Barrett, Head Administrator 505-440-8511 
bbarrett@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy 

Gregory Leonard, Special Ed Teacher 505-298-2746 
gleonard@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy 

Audra Hays, Social Worker  505-280-0193 
ahays@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy  

Carla Gonzales, Registrar/Office Manager  505-659-6290 
cgonzales@samsacademy.com 

AFR Fire Marshall Tim Pope, Fire Inspector 505-164-6300,  
tpope@cabq.gov 

mailto:acatanzaro@samsacademy.com
mailto:bbarrett@samsacademy.com
mailto:gleonard@samsacademy.com
mailto:jherring@samsacademy.com
mailto:cgonzales@samsacademy.com
mailto:tpope@cabq.gov


 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  101 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

Albuquerque Police 
Department 

Pete Gelabert, NW Crime Prevention 
Specialist 

505-831-4705 
pgelabert@cabq.gov 

 

An essential component of school crisis response is the reunification of students with their 
parents/guardians after an incident.  This process is crucial, as schools are accountable for maintaining 
the chain-of-custody for every student during and after a crisis; reunification also helps with the re-
establishment of social support system, which is particularly important after a tragic event or disaster 
affecting or involving children.  Depending upon the crisis and if students were moved to a relocation site, 
will dictate the specific site for reunification.  

Albuquerque Aviation Academy reviews and practices reunification protocols with staff annually during 
the first weeks of school.  This training is led by the Director of Operations.  Pete Gelabert, NW Crime 
Prevention Specialist with the Albuquerque Police Department, Tim Pope, Fire Inspector with 
Albuquerque Fire and Rescue and Richard Clark, Bernalillo County Director of Emergency Management 
are invited by the school to observe and evaluate our Reunification Plans and offer suggestions on 
improvement strategies.   

For the reunification process Albuquerque Aviation Academy will follow the following procedures: 

● Establish a parent/guardian check-in location near the entrance to the reunification site where 
instructions on the process will be provided without allowing the parents/guardians direct access 
to students. 

● Move or deliver students to the student staging area, beyond the field of vision of 
parents/guardians.  (Both re-location sites have double locked entries that will prevent parents 
from entering beyond the check-in location) 

● Students should be provided some form of entertainment other activities while awaiting 
reunification with parent/guardian. 

● Parents/guardians will complete the Reunification Card (see sample below).  A school official will 
verify custody authorization.  Positive identification is required of the parent/guardian.  The 
parent/guardian will be provided the receipt copy of the Reunification Card.  

● To expedite reunification, all efforts will be made to set up stations based on the student’s grade 
which will allow parents/guardians to “self-sort.”  

● Staff will use runners to recover students from the student staging area after their 
parent/guardian has been authorized to pick them up. 

● The relocation sites that have been chosen for Albuquerque Aviation Academy are equipped with 
facilities for students with students with disabilities, AFN, and LEP.  Bilingual staff will be available 
to help translate as needed.  

● Amanda Catanzaro, the Albuquerque Aviation Academy Director of Operations will arrange for 
every available staff member trained in crisis intervention to be available to assist in meeting 
immediate mental health needs at the reunification site. 

The Albuquerque Police Department, Bernalillo County Sheriff’s Office, and New Mexico State Police will 
be requested to direct traffic (vehicle and human), to ensure a safe and orderly reunification process and 
to facilitate a sense of safety and security for everyone. 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy will ensure that it has Reunification Go-Kits that are inspected regularly 
with essential resources and supplies assembled in advance and transported to the reunification site.  This 
will include floor plans of the site; copies of emergency contact cards; class rosters; directional signs; 
flashlights; a bullhorn with extra batteries; pens, pencils, and paper; laptop computers with extension 



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  102 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

cords, etc.  Go-Kits can be stored in backpacks or duffle bags.  This Go-Kit will be stored in the Albuquerque 
Aviation Academy administration office making it easily accessible when evacuating.  

The Albuquerque Aviation Academy office manager is assigned to pick up and transport the Go-Kit to the 
relocation site.   



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  103 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

 

  



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  104 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

5.2 Continuity of Operations Planning (COOP) 

Purpose 

The purpose of a Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP) is to ensure that the school has procedures in 
place to maintain and or rapidly resume essential operations after an incident has disrupted normal school 
operations, activities, or services.  The COOP is critical to safety and planning and is a good business 
practice.  The plan should anticipate a full range of potential incidents that could cause a temporary 
interruption of school operations to a complete shutdown of the school, requiring suspension of non-
essential functions and/or relocation of essential functions to an alternative site for some period of time. 
A goal is to provide full operational capacity for essential functions within 12 hours after activation of 
COOP and sustain these functions for up to 30 days. 

Essential Functions Performed by COOP Personnel: 

Personnel Guide 

Head Administrator/designee: 
● Determine when to close school, and/or send students/staff to alternate locations. 
● Disseminate information internally to students and staff. 
● Communicate with parents, media, and the larger school community. 
● Identify a line of succession, including who is responsible for restoring business functions for 

school. 
● Ensure systems are in place for rapid contract execution after an incident. 
● Identify relocation areas for classrooms and administrative operations. 
● Create a system for registering students (out of the district or into alternative schools). 
● Brief and train staff regarding their additional responsibilities. 
● Secure and provide needed personnel, equipment and supplies, facilities, resources, and services 

required for continued operations. 
● Identify strategies to continue teaching (e.g., using the Internet, providing tutors for homebound 

students, rearranging tests). 
● Reevaluate the curriculum. 

Custodians/Maintenance Personnel: 
● Work with local government officials to determine when it is safe for students and staff to return 

to the school buildings and grounds. 
● Manage the restoration of school buildings and grounds (debris removal, repairing, repainting 

and/or re-landscaping). 

Office Manager/Office Staff: 
● Maintain inventory. 
● Maintain essential records (and copies of records) including the school’s insurance policy. 
● Ensure redundancy of records (records are kept at a different physical location). 
● Secure classroom equipment, books, and materials. 
● Restore administrative and record-keeping functions such as payroll, accounting, and personnel 

records. 
● Retrieve, collect, and maintain personnel data. 
● Provide account payable and cash management services.



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  105 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

Counselors, Social Workers, and School Nurses: 
● Establish academic and support services for students and staff/faculty. 
● Implement additional response and recovery activities according to established protocols. 

Specific Procedures 

Activation and Relocation 

The Head Administrator will determine when to activate and implement COOP procedures and/or to 
relocate operations to an alternate site.  Authority for activation may be delegated.  The Director of 
Operations will activate COOP procedures whenever it is determined the school is not suitable for safe 
occupancy or functional operation.  The governing council will be notified and provided information and 
details regarding the relocation of operations. 

Alert, Notification, and Implementation Process 

The Director of Operations will activate the school EOP communication plan (telephone tree, cell phone, 
text message, automated notification system, etc.) to notify students and school personnel of COOP 
activation and provide situation information, as available.  Parents and/or guardians will also be alerted 
and notified of COOP activation and as important information becomes available. 

Relocation Sites 

The Head Administrator with the inclusion of the Governing Council President will identify relocation sites 
to maintain and/or restore operations and essential functions disrupted by an incident.  The school should 
have more than one potential relocation site.  One site should be accessed by walking, if appropriate, and 
another site(s) by transportation services.  Sites must have reliable logistical support, services, and 
infrastructure systems that can sustain operations for up to 30 days. 

Consideration should also be given to essential functions or services that can be conducted from a remote 
location in addition to a predetermined alternative facility. 

Alternate Facilities 

In the event Albuquerque Aviation Academy is unable to return to its building for an extended period the 
school will transition to on-line virtual learning.  All students of Albuquerque Aviation Academy have 
sufficient devices and experience to seamlessly shift to on-line learning.  Much of the school curriculum is 
cloud based and available immediately in the event of an emergency.  If the school chooses to continue 
with in-person learning, the former Southwest Aeronautics, Mathematics and Science Academy facility, 
located about 10 miles from the school has identified sufficient classroom space to allow for the 
immediate resumption of classroom activities for as long as in needed to restore operations at the school, 
if available.  Staff other than teachers may be assigned to various other sites during this time. 

For the alternate facility, the essential resources, equipment, and software that will be necessary for the 
resumption of operations at the site have been identified and plans developed for securing those 
resources.  IT systems available at the site will need to be tested for compatibility with the school’s 
backup data. 

At the alternative site identified above by name and location, the lines and services for telephones and 
computers are maintained, protected, and backed up offsite by the City of Albuquerque.  The hardware 
and physical lines are protected by the fire prevention, humidity controls, temperature controls, and 
electrical generating capacity of the building itself. 



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  106 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

Vital Records and Retention File 

Vital records are archived and/or retained on backup data systems stored in secure services provided by 
the school’s IT contractor.  Vital records are electronic and hard copy documents that are needed to 
support the essential functions and operations of a school, including legal and financial records, such as 
personnel and student records; payroll records; insurance records; and contract documents are included 
in the school’s administrative Go-Kits.  

Personnel Management 

School personnel responsible for essential functions will be cross trained to ensure effective 
implementation of COOP procedures.  All COOP designated personnel, as well as senior staff, will undergo 
annual training on executing COOP procedures during the first week of school.  Training will be designed 
to inform each participant of his/her responsibilities and include others during implementation. 

Desktop exercises will be conducted annually during the first week of school.  A walk-through exercise will 
be conducted every other year to identify space and to ensure back-up systems are in place in the event 
COOP is executed. 

It is essential that all employees have a clear understanding of what they are supposed to do.  Training 
includes specific protocols for identifying and assisting employees with disabilities.  Designated COOP 
personnel will participate in exercises to test academic, physical, and business systems.  Training will 
include testing the information technology (IT) systems and backup data including testing of offsite backup 
system data and IT operating systems. 

All school personnel need to be informed of when they are expected to be ready to go back to work and/or 
if they are being recalled to support school COOP efforts.  Phones will be the method of communication. 

Reconstitution 

In most instances of COOP implementation, reconstitution will be a reverse execution of those duties and 
procedures listed above, including: 

● Inform staff that the threat or incident no longer exists and provide instructions for the 
resumption of normal operations. 

● Supervise an orderly return to the school building. 
● Conduct an after-action review of COOP operations and effectiveness of plans and procedures. 

 
  



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  107 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

5.3 Psychological and Emotional Recovery 

Crisis Intervention Team Roster 

 

Organization Name & Title Phone Number & E-mail 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy  

Amanda Catanzaro, Director of 
Operations  

505-715-3420 
acatanzaro@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy  

Bridget Barrett, Head Administrator 505-440-8511 
bbarrett@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy  

Gregory Leonard, Special Ed Teacjer 505-298-2746 
gleonard@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy  

Audra Hays, Social Worker  505-280-0193 
ahays@samsacademy.com 

Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy  

Carla Gonzales, Registrar/Office 
Manager  

505-659-6290 
cgonzales@samsacademy.com 

Updated 11/9/2023 

Disasters such as wildfires, earthquakes, transportation accidents or suicides are usually unexpected, 
sudden, and overwhelming.  For many survivors, including students and staff, there are no outwardly 
visible signs of physical injury, but there can, nonetheless, be an emotional toll.  It is common for people 
who have experienced disaster to have strong emotional reactions.  Understanding responses to 
distressing events can help schools to cope effectively with student and staff feelings, thoughts and 
behaviors and help them along the path to recovery. 

As mentioned earlier in this section, the recovery phase is designed to assist students and staff with 
healing and coping and to restore educational operations in schools.  The goal of the Albuquerque Aviation 
Academy psychological/emotional recovery plan includes:   

● Supporting the grieving process 
● Reducing identification with the victim(s) 
● Preventing imitative suicides (if the crisis was a suicide) 
● Re-establishing a healthy school climate 
● Identifying and referring at-risk survivors 
● Providing long-term surveillance 

Psychological/emotional trauma can manifest differently in every person.  Following a disaster, people 
(students and staff) can feel stunned, disoriented, or unable to integrate distressing information.  Once 
these initial reactions subside, people can experience a variety of thoughts and behaviors.  Common 
behaviors to look for can be:  

● Intense or unpredictable feelings.  Some people may be anxious, nervous, overwhelmed, or grief-
stricken.  Some may also feel more irritable or moody than usual.  

● Changes to thoughts and behavior patterns.  
● Difficulty in concentrating or making decisions. 
● Sensitivity to environmental factors. 
● Fears that the stressful event will be repeated.  
● Strained interpersonal relationships. 
● Stress-related physical symptoms.  Headaches, nausea, and chest pain may occur and could 

require medical attention.  

mailto:acatanzaro@samsacademy.com
mailto:bbarrett@samsacademy.com
mailto:gleonard@samsacademy.com
mailto:jherring@samsacademy.com
mailto:cgonzales@samsacademy.com


 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  108 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

Albuquerque Aviation Academy psychological/emotional recovery plan includes:  

● Recognizing the factors that may impact psychological/emotional recovery. 
● Addressing issues related to traumatic stress. 
● Providing short and long-term interventions, as necessary. 
● Working with internal and external partners who can provide support services. 
● Training for school and district-level mental health recovery teams.  

Both short and long-term support is provided by the school so that students and staff can fully recover.  
These include: 

● Short-term Support  

 Providing mental health resource materials for families, students, and staff. 

 Making individual and group crisis counseling available during the first week after a crisis. 

 Promote self-care among staff and utilize Employee Assistance Programs (EAPs). 

 Being aware of students and staff with a prior history of risk-taking or trauma. 

● Long-term Support 

 Based on information gained in short-term intervention, the school will refer students 
and staff to long-term interventions, that, based on need may include: 

 Trauma- and grief-focused school-based mental health programs. 

 Cognitive Behavioral Intervention for Trauma in Schools (CBITS). 

 Supports for Students Exposed to Trauma (SSET). 

 Ongoing assessment/monitoring of mental health of students and staff: 

 Monitor attendance, grades, and counselor visits. 

 Provide care for caregivers who may be suffering from compassion fatigue. 

 Reinforce ongoing prevention programs. 

 Be aware of “key dates” for trials, anniversaries, and holidays. 

 Modify lesson plans and/or testing plans, if needed.  

Specifically related to a suicide or death on campus, efforts are directed towards helping the school get 
back to its pre-crisis level of functioning and to develop new skills for dealing with challenges in the future.   

To accomplish this, the school will: 

● Work with those staff and students impacted by death deal with the current trauma and grief and 
reduce the intensity of an individual’s or group’s emotional, mental, physical and behavioral 
reactions to a crisis. 

● Stabilize the campus community, restore some semblance of order and routine, and help the 
community return to their pre-crisis level of functioning. 

● Work to prevent or at least limit the risk of further suicides and imitative suicidal behavior. 
● Help students, faculty and staff solve problems, as this may help to enhance independent 

functioning. 
● Facilitate understanding and help the campus community:  

 Process what has happened. 

 Encourage the expression of difficult emotions. 

 Help individuals understand the impact of the event. 
 



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  109 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

Psychological and Emotional Recovery efforts will be led by the school Crisis Intervention Team.  QPR 
Training for Train the Trainer is available through the New Mexico Department of Health Training Program.  
Any staff attending the DOH training will provide training for the rest of the team. 
  



 

 
ALBUQUERQUE AVIATION ACADEMY  110 Safety Plan 2024 - 2026 
 
 

Section VI: APPENDICES 



 

           Southwest Aeronautics Mathematics & Science Academy 
Complaint Procedure for Parents, Students, and Community Members 

 

The Southwest Aeronautics Mathematics & Science Academy Charter School (SAMS) Governance Council 
recognizes that inquiries, concerns and complaints received from the public, including matters of instruc-
tion, operation, finance, and personnel issues, must be resolved as expeditiously and satisfactorily as possi-
ble. 
 
For any concern or complaint regarding any SAMS Academy school policy, practice, or procedure; any 
school site practice or procedure; or a school employee:

 Step 1: Initial Inquiry:  Informal Resolution
     Step 2: Initial Grievance Process:  Filing a Written Formal Complaint
     Step 3: Head AdministratorΖs Hearing (within 15 working days)
     Step 4: Requesting a Governance Board Hearing (within 5 working days)

A. Complaints Regarding School Employees
To promote prompt and fair resolution of the complaint, the following procedure shall govern the 
resolution of complaints against district employees:

 Step 1: Informal Resolution
 Every effort should be made to resolve a complaint at the earliest possible stage. 
 Whenever possible, the complainant should communicate directly with the employee 
 involved in order to resolve concerns. If the complainant is unable or unwilling to resolve the 
 complaint directly with the employee, he/she may file a written complaint directly with the 
  Head Administrator. (Step 2)

 Step 2: Filing a Written Formal Complaint
 Written complaints shall be made using the school’s Complaint Form (Exhibit A). All 
 complaints must include:
  a. The full name of each employee involved;
  b. A brief but specific summary of the complaint and the facts surrounding it, 
  and;
  c. A specific description of any prior attempt to discuss the complaint with the 
  employee and the failure to resolve the matter. If the complainant is unable to prepare 
  the complaint in writing, administrative staff shall help him/her to do so.

  Step 3: Head Administrator's Hearing
  The Head Administrator shall attempt to resolve the complaint to the satisfaction of the 
 person involved within fifteen (15) days of receiving the appeal. The Director will communicate 
 the findings and resolution to all parties in writing within ten (10) working days of the hearing. 
 Both the complainant and the employee against whom the complaint was made may appeal the 
 decision of the Director to the Governance Board. The request must be made in writing and 
 submitted to both the Governance Board and Director within five (5) working days of the 
 Director’s response.

http://www.berkeleyschools.net/wp-content/uploads/2011/10/BUSD_ComplaintForm.pdf


  

 

  Step 4: Governance Board Hearing for any Complaint Regarding a District Policy, Site 
 Practice or Policy and Complaint about an Employee
  1. Before any Council consideration of a complaint, the Head Administrator shall submit the 
  Council a written report concerning the complaint, including but not limited to: 

  a. The full name of each employee involved;
  b. A brief but specific summary of the complaint and the facts surrounding it, 
  sufficient to inform the Board and the parties as to the precise nature of the 
  complaint and to allow the parties to prepare a response;
  c. A copy of the signed original complaint;
    d. A summary of the action taken by the Head Administrator, together 
  with his/her specific finding that the problem has not been resolved and the reasons.

The Council may uphold the Head Administrator's decision without hearing the complaint. If the 
Council decides not to hold a hearing, the Head Administrator will notify the complainant of the 
CouncilΖs decision to uphold the Head Administrator's decision.  Typically, the Governing Council 
will NOT review administrative decisions regarding the following: student discipline less than a 
long term suspension or expulsion, student placements (in special education or regular educa-
tion classes), complaints about a staff member’s performance (except the Head Administrator), 
matters particularly within the expertise of the educational staff and administration.

  2. All parties to a complaint may be asked to attend a Council meeting in order to clarify the 
 issue and present available evidence.
 3. A closed session may be held to hear the complaint in accordance with law.
  4. The decision of the Governing Council shall be final.

 

B. Complaints Regarding School Policies, Practices or Procedures
1. If the complaint regards school policy, practice, or procedure the complaint process shall begin with 
Step 2 – Filing a Written Formal Complaint. All subsequent steps must be followed.
2. When examining complaints regarding policy, practices, or procedures the Head Administrator may 
act to interpret the rules of such documents.
3. The Head Administrator may also recommend to the Governing Council changes to school policy and 
administrative regulations in order to rectify a complaint if it is found to be in the best interests of all 
students.
4. The complainant has the right to appeal all decisions made by the Head Administrator with the 
Governing Council.



Complaint Policy – Exhibit A

SAMS Academy 

Complaint Form
For Parents, Students, and Community Members

Regarding School or District Policy, Practice, or Procedures or Employees
 
This form and process is available for any parent, student, or community member who wishes to initiate 
a complaint against any SAMS Academy policy, practice, or procedure, or a school employee. The com-
plainant shall attempt to resolve the complaint at Step 1. If not applicable or possible, the complainant 
may go to the next appropriate step. (Please see Complaint Policy Process.)
 
This complaint pertains to: 
 
_____  A school employee (name): _________________________________________________ 
 
______ A district policy, practice, or procedure: _______________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______ A school policy, practice, or procedure: _______________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of incident: ___________________________________ Complaint Form must be filed within 7 
working days of incident. 
 

 
1.  Please write the nature of the complaint. This should be a description in your own words of the 

grounds of your complaint, including all names, dates, and places necessary for a complete 
understanding of your complaint. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.  Please list any attempts you have made to resolve the complaint. You may attach additional 
pages. 

 
 
 
 
 



Complainant’s Name (Student’s name, if applicable) ______________________________________      
  
Complainant’s Phone Number_(____)________________________________________________ 
 
Complainant’s Address            
                  Street     City  State  Zip 
   
Complainant’s email address_______________________________________________________      
 

I certify that the information I have provided relative to this complaint is true and correct. 
 
Complainant’s Signature_____________________________        Date Signed _____________________ 

 

 

 

Step 1: Informal Resolution

Every effort should be made to resolve a complaint at the earliest possible stage. Whenever possible, you should communicate 

directly with the employee involved in order to resolve concerns.

If you are unable or unwilling to resolve the complaint directly with the employee, you may file a written complaint directly to 
the Head Administrator (Step 2).
 
Step 2: Filing a Written Formal Complaint
If the complaint was not resolved informally (Step 1), you may submit a formal written complaint to the Head Administrator 
using the Complaint Form. If this complaint is against the Head Administrator, it should be filed with the 
Governing Council. A formal written complaint must include: the name of the employee, policy, procedure or practice involved; 
a brief but specific summary of the complaint; and a description of any prior attempt to resolve the complaint informally.
 

 

 

 

Step ϯ: HeaĚ �Ěŵinistrator's Hearing
The Head Administrator shall confer with the parties within fifteen (15) working days of the receipt of the appeal. The Head 
Administrator, (505) 338-8601 or designee shall send a response, in writing, to the parties within ten (10) working days of the 
conference.If the Head AdministratorΖs decision does not resolve the complaint, any party may appeal the decision to the Gov-
ernance Council. The request must be made in writing and submitted to the Governing Council within five (5) working days of 
the Head AdministratorΖs response.

 

Request for Governance Board Hearing of Initial Complaint 

 

Complainant  ____________________________________________ Date __________________________ 

 

Step 4: Requesting a Governing Council Hearing
The Council may elect to hold a hearing and render a finding or support the finding made at Step 3 without holding a hear-

ing. The decision of the Council is final and will be communicated to the complainant by the Head Administrator.

 



Bank Reconciliation: 
 October 2023

o Reconciled cash balance at month end was $585,542.28
o Outstanding items total $59,101.24
o Expenditures exceeded Revenues by $132,178.84

SAMS Academy received 33.38% of budgeted Operational revenue & expended 26.48% of budget during through the end of the month.

Finance Summary as of October 31, 2023

BARS for Approval:

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24
Fund Balance $836,477.69 $523,400.23 $287,536.70 $395,071.00 $916,852.00 $1,110,937.00 $514,208.57 $640,145.18

$836,477.69 

$523,400.23 

$287,536.70 
$395,071.00 

$916,852.00 
$1,110,937.00 

$514,208.57 
$640,145.18 

 $-
 $200,000.00
 $400,000.00
 $600,000.00
 $800,000.00

 $1,000,000.00
 $1,200,000.00

Fu
nd

 B
al

an
ce

 ($
)

H ISTORICAL OPERATIONAL FUND BALANCE

8.34%
16.75%

25.08%
33.38%

5.59%
12.29%

20.00%
26.48%

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

July August September October November December January February March April May June

Operational Revenue vs. Expenditures

Revenue Percent of FY24  budget Expenditures Percent of FY24 budget

 $660,000
 $680,000

 $700,000
 $720,000

 $740,000
 $760,000

 $780,000

Reconciled cash balance

$723,345 

$700,362 
$717,721 

$775,851 

FY24 OPERATIONAL CASH BALANCE
July August September October November December January February March April May June



Bank Account Number
Operating #7515

Date Number Payee/From Deposit Withdrawal Description
10/2/2023 00024302 BANKCARD PCI FEE 092923  $           130.95 Bank Credit Card Fees
10/2/2023 00024303 BANKCARD MTHLY FEES230930  $             93.54 Bank Credit Card Fees
10/2/2023 00024304 September 2023 Bank Fees  $           109.00 Bank Fees
10/2/2023 CR10-01 Senior Yearbook page  $           100.00 
10/2/2023 CR10-02 Homecoming Tickets  $             60.00 
10/3/2023 NM Public Schools Insurance Authority  $      20,451.44 Monthly Employee Insurance
10/3/2023 CR10-03 REAP  $      28,160.00 
10/3/2023 CR10-04 Student Council, Homecoming, Scott Restitution Check  $           183.75 
10/4/2023 CR10-05 Homecoming and Senior page  $             50.00 
10/4/2023 CR10-06 Homecoming  $             60.00 
10/5/2023 CR10-07 Homecoming and Student Council  $           289.00 
10/6/2023 ABCWUA  $        1,553.37 6441 Ventana Waste, Water, and Recycle
10/6/2023 EM3 Networks  $           742.06 Monthly Internet for 6441 Ventana-SPI Billing-October 2023
10/6/2023 Quadient Finance USA, Inc.  $           139.87 Postage for Mail postage machine
10/6/2023 6299 ACES | Association of Charter Schools Education Services  $      12,802.84 Yellowstone/Special Ed PD/ Ancillary Services/ Substitutes Costs/LDD
10/6/2023 6300 Albuquerque Charter School League  $           300.00 2023-24 ASCL Association Fee
10/6/2023 6301 Amanda Catanzaro  $             59.00 Backround Checks
10/6/2023 6302 Amanda Garcia  $        1,525.00 Nursing Sevices
10/6/2023 6303 Bridget Barrett  $             25.00 Prizes for assemblies
10/6/2023 6304 Cooperative Educational Services  $        2,275.53 Ancillary Services
10/6/2023 6305 Clearly Clean Janitorial Services LLC.  $        5,325.29 Janitorial services
10/6/2023 6306 EAA (Experimental Aircraft Assoc) Chapter 179  $             50.00 Fly In event
10/6/2023 6307 Harris School Solutions  $        1,697.56 Sep To/From Transportation wih Bus Lease Payment
10/6/2023 CR10-08 Homecoming  $             40.00 
10/6/2023 CR10-09 Homecoming  $             90.00 
10/10/2023 NUSENDA FCU  $      45,332.55 Payroll PP07
10/10/2023 6308 Matthew Dixson  $           295.81 Homecoming dance supplies
10/10/2023 CR10-10 Homecoming  $             30.00 
10/10/2023 CR10-11 Homecoming/ Senior Page  $             70.00 
10/11/2023 Internal Revenue Service  $      17,014.83 Federal Payroll Taxes
10/12/2023 CR10-12 Senior Page  $           100.00 
10/13/2023 CR10-13 KRL September Commissions  $           105.30 
10/13/2023 CR10-14 SEG Oct 2023  $    283,957.32 
10/16/2023 CR10-15 Senior Page  $             50.00 
10/18/2023 CR10-16AB Sandoval property tax  $             16.65 
10/18/2023 CR10-17 Senior Page  $           100.00 
10/18/2023 CR10-18 Cheerleading  $           150.00 
10/19/2023 CR10-19 Cheerleading  $           600.00 
10/20/2023 CR10-20 Bernalillo Prop. Tax  $           630.83 
10/20/2023 CR10-21 Senior Yearbook page  $           100.00 
10/20/2023 CR10-22 Archery Donation  $           100.00 
10/23/2023 CR10-23 Senior  page  $             50.00 
10/23/2023 CR10-24 Cheerleading  $           450.00 
10/24/2023 Canon Financial Services, Inc.  $           968.63 Monthly Copiers Lease Payment
10/24/2023 Herrera Coaches, Inc.  $      23,430.70 Oct To/From Transportation wih Bus Lease Payment
10/24/2023 New Mexico Gas Company  $           131.39 6441 Ventana Natural Gas
10/24/2023 World Fuel Services, Inc.  $        2,319.42 Airplane Fuel
10/24/2023 6309 806 Technologies, Inc.  $        2,250.00 PD Teacher Trainijng
10/24/2023 6310 ACES | Association of Charter Schools Education Services  $      50,111.92 LDD chomebooks for students
10/24/2023 6311 Amanda Catanzaro  $           118.00 Backround Checks
10/24/2023 6312 Brady Industries of New Mexico LLC  $           315.57 Towels, Tissues, amd Trash Liners
10/24/2023 6313 Cooperative Educational Services  $    114,883.47 Ancillary Services and Gym Floor
10/24/2023 6314 Timothy Allen Manville  $           269.08 Locksmith
10/24/2023 6315 Ortiz & Zamora, Attorneys at Law, LLC  $        2,756.74 september  Legal
10/24/2023 6316 Robertson Aircraft Inc.  $           949.00 Airplane Maintenance
10/24/2023 6317 School Specialty, Inc./Frey Scientific  $           134.22 Special Education Supplies
10/24/2023 6318 TESOL Trainers  $        2,155.00 Teacher PD Training
10/25/2023 CR10-25 Cheerleading  $           550.00 
10/26/2023 00024341 BANKCARD PCI NON COMPLY102523  $             50.00 Bank Credit Card Fees
10/26/2023 CR10-26 Senior Page/ Boys MS Basketball  $           150.00 
10/26/2023 CR10-27 Repair to Wall  $           250.00 
10/26/2023 CR10-28 Boys Basketball Fee  $           200.00 
10/27/2023 Internal Revenue Service  $      14,555.97 Federal Payroll Taxes
10/27/2023 NM Educational Retirement Board  $      39,356.30 Monthly Employee Retirement-Orctober 2023
10/27/2023 NUSENDA FCU  $      40,951.94 Payroll PP08
10/27/2023 CR10-29 Transportation OCT  $      21,272.00 
10/27/2023 CR10-30 Basketball/ Chromebook/ FY24 Lab Fee  $           390.00 
10/27/2023 CR10-31 Boys Basketball Fee  $           100.00 
10/30/2023 CR10-32 Boys Basketball Fee  $           100.00 
10/31/2023 New Mexico Retiree Health Care Authority  $        4,092.51 Monthly Employee Retireee Healthcare-October 2023

Southwest Aeronautics, Mathematics, and Science Academy
Bank Register Activity

October 2023



10/31/2023 RM SAMS LLC  $      61,605.88 6441 Ventana LPA Payment-November 2023
10/31/2023 CR10-33 Boys Basketball Fee  $           200.00 
10/31/2023 CR10-34 Dividend Income - Operating  $           392.30 

Sub Total $339,147.15 $471,329.38

Bank Account Number
Nusenda Savings 37627515

Date Number Payee/From Deposit Withdrawal
10/31/2023 CR10-35 Dividend Income - Savings $3.39

Sub Total $3.39 $0.00
Grand Total $339,150.54 $471,329.38



Bank Reconciliation + Outstanding Expected GL - Actual GL 1 Difference
Beginning Balance $825,344.09 + ($119,038.40) = $706,305.69 - $706,305.69 = $0.00
Deposits/Debits $339,147.15 + $0.00 = $339,147.15 - $339,147.15 = $0.00
Withdrawals/Credits ($531,266.54) + $59,937.16 = ($471,329.38) - ($471,329.38) = $0.00
Sub Total $633,224.70 ($59,101.24) $574,123.46 $574,123.46 $0.00

Outstanding Checks
Date Item Number Withdrawal

9/7/2023 6288 Brady Industries of New Mexico LLC $444.36
10/6/2023 6300 Albuquerque Charter School League $300.00
10/24/2023 6309 806 Technologies, Inc. $2,250.00
10/24/2023 6310 ACES | Association of Charter Schools Education Services $50,111.92
10/24/2023 6315 Ortiz & Zamora, Attorneys at Law, LLC $2,756.74
10/24/2023 6316 Robertson Aircraft Inc. $949.00
10/24/2023 6317 School Specialty, Inc./Frey Scientific $134.22
10/24/2023 6318 TESOL Trainers $2,155.00

$59,101.24

Bank Reconciliation + Outstanding Expected GL - Actual GL 1 Difference
Beginning Balance $11,415.43 + $0.00 = $11,415.43 - $11,415.43 = $0.00
Deposits/Debits $3.39 + $0.00 = $3.39 - $3.39 = $0.00
Withdrawals/Credits $0.00 + $0.00 = $0.00 - $0.00 = $0.00
Sub Total $11,418.82 $0.00 $11,418.82 $11,418.82 $0.00

Southwest Aeronautics, Mathematics, and Science Academy
Bank Account Reconciliations

October 2023

Description


	Agenda SA November 17 2023 Regular Meeting
	Minutes 2023 10 20 Regular Mtg Pending
	Aviation Board Report 11 17 23
	November 2023 Facilities
	November 2023 Administrative Update
	ABQ Aviation Academy_Safe Schools Plan_FINAL 11.15.2023
	SAMSAcademyGrievancePolicy-ParentsStudentsCommunity
	SAMS_GC Summary Report_10.31.2023

